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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERESE

| present the annual results of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2012.

RESULTS

The year 2012 has turned out to be a challenging one in the
history of Symphony both as a manufacturer and a retailer of
branded consumer goods in China. The source of these challenges
stems from a protracted global slowdown and uncertain prospect
of sustained recovery.

Symphony’s manufacturing business suffered a sharp order
reduction, both in its overseas and domestic markets. Order
books from our brand owners were affected by a weakened retail
performance. For most parts of the year both in the US and in
Europe, demand for a wide range of consumer products, including
footwear remained lackluster.

The economy of China was correspondingly impacted by weak
export revenues and inflow of foreign direct investments. The
build-up of excess capacity and excess inventories did not help the
overall situation. Most brands faced a supercharged retail market
where heavy discounts became a daily fare. To the extent that
such market sentiments created a downward pressure on margins,
our retail performance in China had suffered from it.

In our manufacturing business, we encountered a formidable
challenge in the form of rising labor cost, higher utilities cost,
overheads pressures from our Zhongshan factory as well
as in the interior of China. Raw materials, a volatile foreign
currency regime, inflationary pressures, higher oil prices, every
transportation and logistics cost are trending higher. Meanwhile,
industry consolidation and tight credit caused prospective buyers
to narrowly focus their purchases and order placements with a
few well known factory groups and starving the smaller ones. All
these difficulties had forced us to re-examine our position in the
industry and caused a reformulation of development strategy so
that we can be effective and profitable. The new strategy is aimed
at regaining our competitiveness and also to strengthen our niche
position in the fast maturing manufacturing, branding, retailing,
and distribution sectors in China.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The 2012 financial results reflect the combined performance of our
current business operations and the change initiatives undertaken
in the year. Compared to a post-tax profit of HKD35,900,000 in
2011, the Company suffered a post-tax loss of HKD224,300,000
in 2012. The bulk of our loss was attributable to two factories
relocation in China. The Company incurred a sizeable severance
payment to its former employees with long tenure of service.
Despite this heavy financial obligation, we discharged our duties
and obligations with sincere gratitude to our former staff and
employees and would extend to them our best wishes.

After a careful strategic review of our competitive position, we
have decided that we urgently need to accelerate the pace of
transformation from manufacturing to joint product development
with customers, and purchase of specialized raw materials
for manufacturers (the “Transformation”). We expect the
Transformation would bring about a bright future because of our
unigue ability to leverage our extensive footwear industry-specific
knowledge and deep brand relationships. When fully executed,
the manufacturing business is expected to contribute fairly
significantly in revenues to our Company.

OUTLET MALL DEVELOPMENT AND OPENING

On October 26, 2012 the Company successfully opened its first
outlet mall in Shenyang, a significant milestone and news worthy
event, in Shenyang and the satellite cities in Northeast of China.
Overall, the outlet mall has been well received by all participants,
including our partners, government officials, fellow retailers, and
customers. Since opening, the operations have gone on smoothly
and most of the stores have now been rented out. Due to popular
demand, an expansion program is now in the works. We expect
this project to perform well to expand further and to become
profitable in the near future. As we seek to increase customer
traffic at the mall, new investments in fixtures and furniture, as
well as marketing expenses to draw crowds to the site will be
incurred.

It is important to note that most of our tenants are appreciative
of the attractive, spacious ambience we have created for them,
including the revolutionary approach and designs aimed at
enhancing shopping experience in Shenbei District of Shenyang.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERRE

CONSOLIDATION OF RETAILING IN CHINA

In view of the intensified competition China’s retail sector has
shaped out to be, we responded quickly by consolidating our
operations, reviewing our footprint and market exposure, and
revisiting our planned projections. We had renegotiated some
tenancy agreements, closed down challenging stores with
no prospect of gaining profitability within a specific period,
cut overheads drastically, and minimized inventories. Further
consolidation is in the card and will continue relentlessly until the
core retailing business become profitable.

PONY BRAND OWNERSHIP

A major decision was made during the year with regard to the
PONY brand project. In order to establish our own market niche,
we concluded that a unique consumer brand with the right
heritage and brand cachet is a valuable asset and ownership
should be considered to allow us to autonomy in charting its
operations. Consequently, we negotiated with our partner for
acquisition of PONY’s global ownership outside of China and
Taiwan. We believe that this ownership and control can now
provide us a valuable platform and legitimacy to expand into
brand ownership, development, and management in future.
It is also an opportunity to demonstrate our full capabilities at
nurturing an iconic consumer brand with an authentic heritage to
match. Going forward, we know that much effort will be needed
to make our plan work successfully. But, we believe that PONY
global ownership and control will now challenge us to rally for
companywide support and develop our own brand management
capabilities. It is therefore a project our company needs in order
to embark on reaching an audacious goal in future with a strong
confidence.
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OUTLOOK

Peering into the future, we are confident that Symphony has
undertaken to make adequate preparations to deal with the
uncertain market changes. During the year, we had embarked on
change initiatives to drastically scale back our risk exposure and
concentrate instead on the fundamentals. We intend to take a
cautious approach to managing the affairs of the company. We
shall narrow down and concentrate on a few core activities in
which we have competitive advantage and core competencies.
In this regard, the two core business activities we intend to
dedicate our future efforts are PONY brand development and
outlet mall expansion. We will continue to monitor carefully the
Transformation process. Further consolidation of existing retail
and distribution networks in China is expected until operations
becomes profitable. In the foreseeable future, we have no
intention to expand our retail stores unless more favorable market
conditions prevails.

APPRECIATION

I would like take this opportunity to thank my fellow directors,
our staff and stakeholders for their continuing contributions and
support in shaping the future of Symphony.

Chan Ting Chuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2013
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OPERATION REVIEW
RIERH

During the year, the Group’s footwear manufacturing business
continue to face challenges including but not limited to rising
production costs and declining gross profit margin. The Group
recorded a revenue of HKD1,967,574,000, representing a decline
of 20.61% compared to the year before. Gross profit margin fell
from 15.4% t0 9.90%.

The decrease in revenue is attributable to migration of
manufacturing facilities to Vietnam and Henan in Northern China.
Factories are forced not to take production orders.

The Group recorded a loss of HKD224,346,000 in light of
severance payment arising from relocation of manufacturing
facilities and a challenging China retail operating environment.
Labour and logistics costs are surging while retail business in
China remain sluggish due to a slow China economy and piling up
of inventory in the PRC market.

Other expenses increased to HKD86,644,000 attributable to a
sizeable one-time expense in the form of (a) severance payments
to workers due to cessation of business of the Fujian and Panyu
factories; and (b) the writing off of fixed assets in these factories.

Other income is recorded as HKD122,160,000 due to (a)
recognition of a gain from the disposal of land in Zhongshan
and also (b) grant from the Shenbei government as incentive for
setting up business in Shenyang.

Finance costs increased due to the drawdown of a banking facility
to support expanding Group activities.

MANUFACTURING AND RETAILING BUSINESS
MARKET INFORMATION

During the year, sales to the United States of America and Canada
comprised 65% (2011: 57.6%) and orders to other European
countries comprised 16.4% (2011: 18.9%) of the total sales and
the remaining 18.6% (2011: 23.5%) was shared between the
People’s Republic of China, Taiwan, Hong Kong, Vietnam and
other Asia countries.

PRODUCTION FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had an aggregate number of
29 production lines, of which 13 are in the PRC, and a further 16
are in Vietnam.
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CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP MAINTENANCE
AND RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Our experience and working knowledge on the manufacturing
process, production materials and procurement enable us to work
closely with our customers to deliver quality and cost-effective
products efficiently. We maintain a close relationship with our
customers due to our long term understanding of their needs.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had bank balances and cash
of HKD480,102,000 (2011: HKD277,715,000). The Group was
offered banking facilities amounting to HKD841,370,000 (2011:
HKD568,500,000). As at 31 December 2012, the Group obtained
bank borrowing in the amount of HKD437,426,000 (2011:
HKD120,000,000). The Group has variable interest rate bank
loans which carry interest range from 1.5% to 3.05% per annum.
The effective interest rate of the Group’s bank loans is 1.88%
(2011: 1.52%). The gearing ratio stood at 29.33% (2011: 7.08%),
based on total borrowings over shareholders’ equity. The banking
facilities were secured by corporate guarantees from the Company
and its certain subsidiaries. Bank loans are secured by certain land
and buildings and investment properties of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012, the total number of employees
of the Group was approximately 15,000. Employee costs
(excluding directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately
HKD492,070,000 (2011: HKD517,779,000).

In addition to competitive remuneration packages, discretionary
bonuses and employee share options are awarded to eligible staff
of the Group based on their performance and individual merits.

SHARE OPTION

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has granted
no share option, there was no outstanding, lapsed or cancelled
share option pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 22
October 2001 and the new share option scheme adopted on 10
June 2011.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen, aged 65, Chairman (appointed on 9
March 2009 and re-elected on 10 June 2011)

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen graduated with a Bachelor degree in
civil engineering from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan
is also a director of each of Royal Pacific Limited, First Dynamic
International Limited and Well Success Investment Limited, all
of which are deemed or direct substantial shareholders of the
Company under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. Sze, Sun Sun Tony, aged 61, Deputy Chairman and
Managing Director (appointed on 1 February 2005 and re-elected
on 17 June 2010)

Mr. Sze, Sun Sun Tony has over 30 years of experience in
investment and property development in Hong Kong, mainland
China and overseas markets. He is also a director of each of
Alexon International Limited, First Dynamic International Limited
and Well Success Investment Limited, all of which are deemed
or direct substantial shareholders of the Company under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan, aged 66, Deputy Chairman (appointed
on 1 February 2005 and re-elected on 12 June 2012)

Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan joined the Group at its inception in 1990
and is the founder of the manufacturing business of the Group.
Mr. Chang is a substantial shareholder of Well Success Investment
Limited, the major shareholder of the Company. Mr. Chang is also
the President of the manufacturing division of the Company and
its subsidiaries. He has over 30 years of experience and knowledge
in the footwear manufacturing industry.

Mr. Chan Lu Min, aged 58, (appointed on 28 June 2002 and re-
elected on 10 June 2011)

Mr. Chan Lu Min is also an executive director of Yue Yuen
Industrial (Holdings) Limited (“Yue Yuen”) (HKSE: 00551), a
company engaged in shoe manufacturing that is listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Yue Yuen is deemed as
a substantial shareholder of the Company under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Chan graduated from the Chung
Hsing University in Taiwan and possesses 30 years of finance and
accounting experience.
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Ms. Chen, Fang-Mei, aged 50, (appointed on 8 July 2009 and re-
elected on 10 June 2011)

Ms. Chen Fang-Mei graduated with a Bachelor degree of
International Business from Soochow University in Taiwan in 1986
and has over 20 years of experience in investment and financial
management. During 2001 and 2004, she was the vice president
and head of underwriting of Citibank Securities (Taiwan) Limited.
Ms. Chen is the spokesperson and vice president of Pou Chen
Corporation (“Pou Chen”) (TSE: 9904) since 2004. Pou Chen is a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation and
a deemed substantial shareholder of the Company under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Ms. Chen is also an executive director of Eagle Nice (International)
Holdings Limited (HKSE: 02368), a company engaged in the
manufacturing and trading of sportswear and garments that is
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Dr. Ho Ting Seng, aged 64, (appointed on 7 April 2006 and re-
elected on 17 June 2010)

Dr. Ho Ting Seng graduated from the University of Malaya and
holds both his Master and Doctor of Philosophy degrees from the
University of Pennsylvania, United States of America. He previously
worked as the first Chief Economist of Worldwide Operations at
the Federal Express Corporation. Before joining the Group, Dr.
Ho ran his own consultancy business specialising in multi-model
logistics network design to support direct sourcing and distribution
activities of manufacturer clients in China and Asia.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li | Nan, aged 71, (appointed on 28 June 2002 and re-
elected on 12 June 2012)

Mr. Li | Nan has many years of experience in the footwear
business including sourcing and wholesale operations. He is an
executive director of Yue Yuen. Yue Yuen is a deemed substantial
shareholder of the Company under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor and a Master of Arts degrees
from National Chengchi University in Taiwan and a Master of Arts
degree from the University of Southern California. Mr. Li is also a
member of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Exg

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Kar Shing, aged 60, (appointed on 4 June 1997 and
re-elected on 12 June 2012)

Mr. Cheng Kar Shing holds a Master degree in engineering
from the University of California in Los Angeles, United States.
Mr. Cheng has been a director of New World Hotels (Holdings)
Limited since 1984 and New World Development Company
Limited (“New World Development”) since 1994. New World
Development is a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Exchange”) (HKSE: 00017). He is also an executive
director of New World China Land Limited, a company listed on
the Exchange (HKSE: 00917) and an independent non-executive
director of King Fook Holdings Limited (HKSE: 00280). Mr. Cheng is
also a member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Company.

Mr. Feng Lei Ming, aged 55, (appointed on 12 May 2003 and
re-elected on 12 June 2012)

Mr. Feng Lei Ming graduated with an MBA in finance from the
University of Memphis, Tennessee, United States of America. Mr.
Feng has over 18 years of experience in the Hong Kong securities
industry. He is currently the Managing Director of Pro-Health
(CHINA) CO., LTD and Responsible Officer of Pinnacle Partners
Asset Management (HK) Co., Ltd.. He was responsible for sales
planning at National Electric Appliance Corp. and A.C. Nielsen in
Taiwan before he started to work in Hong Kong in 1994. Mr. Feng
is also the Chairman of Remuneration Committee and member of
Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Ho Shing Chak, aged 53, (appointed on 30 December 2004
and re-elected on 17 June 2010)

Mr. Ho Shing Chak, a certified public accountant in Hong Kong,
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor degree in business administration and holds a Bachelor of
Laws degree from the Peking University. He previously worked for
a reputable international accounting firm and is currently running
his own business. Mr. Ho is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and is also an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ho is also
the Chairman of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
and member of Remuneration Committee of the Company.
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Mr. Huang, Shenglan, aged 61, (appointed on 8 July 2009 and
re-elected on 10 June 2011)

Mr. Huang holds a diploma in Arts from Huazhong Normal
University, a master degree in International Economics from
Huadong Normal University and a certificate in International
Economic Law in Xiamen University. He also took the Advanced
Management Programme from the Business School of Harvard
University, United States of America. Mr. Huang has over 30 years
of experience in the banking and corporate financing industry. He
had been appointed the executive director and deputy president
of Everbright Bank of China, Beijing head office. Mr. Huang has
been serving as executive director and chief executive office of
Shanghai International Group Hong Kong Limited since 2011. He
has also been an independent non-executive director of each of
Burwell Holdings Limited (HKSE: 00024) since 2004 and China
LotSynergy Holdings Limited (HKSE: 08161) since 2002. In 2012,
he was appointed the non-executive director of China Fortune
Investments (Holding) Limited (HKSE: 08116). Mr. Huang is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chu Tin Chi, aged 62, joined the Company in 2009. He has been
appointed Group General Manager since 2011. Mr. Chu has over
30 years of experience in banking and the capital markets. He
previously held key management positions in listed companies
in Hong Kong and overseas. He also served as the advisor to the
Tianjin Foreign Economic Relations & Trade Commission (now
known as the Commission of Commerce, Tianjin) in PRC.

Allan Cheng-Kang Chan, aged 37, joined the Group in 2004.
Mr. Chan graduated with a Bachelor of Architecture and a
Bachelor of Science (Architecture). He is also a member of the
Architecture Institute of British Columbia (Canada). He has prior
experience in project development and architectural design for
residential and commercial projects in Canada and the United
States. Mr. Chan is the son-in-law of Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony,
Deputy Chairman and executive director of the Company.
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Chan Kin Hung, aged 35, joined the Group in 2009. Mr.
Chan holds a Master of Science degree, Bachelor of Fine Arts
degree and Bachelor of Arts degree. Mr. Chan is responsible for
overseeing and managing the business development of the PONY
brand globally. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Ting Chuen, the
Chairman and executive director of the Company.

Cheung Siu Ying, aged 66, has been with the Group since 1997.
Mr. Cheung graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree in civil
engineering. He has over 40 years of experience in engineering,
construction and project management in Hong Kong and China.

Chow So Ying Anna, aged 49, has been with the Group since
2004. Ms. Chow is a solicitor admitted in the Hong Kong Special
Administration Region and she also holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in English Literature. She was the Company Secretary from
2004 to 2009 and she was re-appointed in 2012. She has over 15
years experience in legal, regulatory, compliance and corporate
secretarial fields.

Henry Mok, aged 51, joined the Group in 2004. Mr. Mok holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Architecture and possesses over 20
years of experience in tourism retailing.

Li Kuangru, aged 63, has been with the Group since 2007. Mr.
Li possesses over 29 years of experience working in finance and
the capital markets in Hong Kong and China. He holds a Master
degree in Social Sciences and a Bachelor degree in mechanical
engineering. He is principally engaged in Group’s China related
projects.

Tham Kit Wan, aged 52, joined the Group in 2007 as Senior
Vice President. Ms. Tham holds a Master of Laws degree and a
Bachelor of Laws degree. She is a solicitor admitted in Singapore,
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and also in England
& Wales. Ms Tham has over 25 years in legal and compliance
affairs.

Yeung Yuk Tuen, aged 38, joined the Company as Chief
Financial Officer in 2012. Mr. Yeung possesses over 15 years
of experience in financial management across Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Yeung is a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountant. He holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration.

Symphony Holdings Limited 2012 Annual Report
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFHE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are manufacturing and trading of
footwear, trading, retailing and distribution of licensed footwear,
apparels, swimming wear and accessories, property investment
and holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities are set out in Notes 37 and 15 respectively to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 34 to 35 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared or paid during the year.
The directors now did not recommend a final dividend to the
shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings and freehold land
were revalued at 31 December 2012. The revaluation resulted in
a surplus of approximately HK$18,924,000 which was credited
directly to the properties revaluation reserve.

Details of movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties at 31 December 2012 were
fair valued by an independent firm of professional property valuers
on an open market value basis. The net increase in fair value of
approximately HK$33,843,000 was credited directly to profit or
loss.

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in Note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The reserves of the Company available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2012 were as follows:

g

ARABAL

24

FHBEDENAERA P BRERME

FA - BEARFAREEAMBRARCEE - W
BB RERARRE D

RN\ A2 Bl

R2012F12A318 » AR AR DB F AR B
REREDT

2011
HKD'000
FiT
Share premium 17 Ve B 362,735
Contributed surplus BEHRH 586,774
Accumulated profits B1Fm A 170,015
1,119,524

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the REFREI18IRENE (K1EF])  RRNEHR

balances in a company’s contributed surplus and share premium
accounts are available for distribution. However, the company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus and share premium if:

(@)  the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the assets of the company would

thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

Symphony Holdings Limited 2012 Annual Report
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen (Chairman)

Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Chan Lu Min

Ms. Chen Fang Mei

Dr. Ho Ting Seng

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Li | Nan

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Cheng Kar Shing

Mr. Feng Lei Ming

Mr. Ho Shing Chak

Mr. Huang Sheng Lan

In accordance with the existing Bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-law”), Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Messrs. Sze Sun Sun Tony, Ho
Ting Seng and Ho Shing Chak retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 22
October 2001 (the “2001 Scheme”) and the new share option
scheme adopted on 10 June 2011 are set out in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has granted
no share option, there was no outstanding, lapsed or cancelled
share option pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 22
October 2001 and the new share option scheme adopted on 10
June 2011.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives and their associates of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Code”),
were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the Company:

ESNETETHRAENER KRARSG
EMEERANER

BIEFHLBAEZ S GO EIS2GEHRTHETHE
SMAE - RBBEAH AR SHER AR (5
R EHRAREESHITESFR HWIZESTA
(MZ2AE<FRI D) BAAR B R RFT - 20124812
A31H  ARARAEERFETHAE RAZE
ALTRAAR S EEA ARG - HHERG &
EHHERSOARETIINT

RATEREE0 BTN BB

Number of ordinary shares held by

FRERITEERYE Percentage

Spouse of the

and/or Total issued share

children number of capital of

under 18 ordinary the Company

Beneficial 8%,/  Controlled shares {EERDT

Director Notes owner 518%  corporation LER BRT
Bz it ZHA UTF¥% ERbE #BYE  REAEIM
Chan Ting Chuen CLll 1,2 3,750,000 - 664,677,468 668,427,468 51.10%
Chang Tsung Yuan REEH 4 4,500,000 = = 4,500,000 0.344%
Sze Sun Sun Tony HEETE 1,3 = - 664,677,468 664,677,468 50.81%

Symphony Holdings Limited 2012 Annual Report



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. Well Success Investment Limited (“Well Success”) was directly interested in
664,677,468 shares of the Company. First Dynamic International Limited
(“First Dynamic”) held more than one-third of the issued share capital of
Well Success. Each of Royal Pacific Limited (“Royal Pacific”) and Alexon
International Limited (“Alexon”) held more than one-third of the issued share
capital of First Dynamic. Accordingly, First Dynamic, Royal Pacific and Alexon
were deemed to be interested in 664,677,468 shares of the Company.

2. Mr. Chan Ting Chuen (“Mr. Chan”) was directly interested in 3,750,000
shares of the Company. Royal Pacific was wholly-owned by TC Chan Family
Holdings Limited (“TCCFHL"), which in turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Chan.
Accordingly, Mr. Chan was deemed to be interested in 668,427,468 shares of
the Company.

3. Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony (“Mr. Sze”) was interested in the entire issued share
capital of Alexon and was therefore deemed to be interested in 664,677,468
shares of the Company.

4. Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan was directly interested in 4,500,000 shares of the
Company. He was also a substantial shareholder of Well Success, in which he
held 20.0% of its issued share capital.

Save as disclosed above and in the section “Share Options”,
none of the directors, chief executives nor their associates had
any interest or short position in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
at 31 December 2012.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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ESVNEETHRAENEERNRAD
EEERAER (&)

1. Well Success Investment Limited (| Well Success | ) &
£ 15 B 664,677,468 K & 2 7] fR 17 ° First Dynamic
International Limited ([ First Dynamic|)## & Well Success
B =7 — B {7 A - Royal Pacific Limited ([ Royal
Pacific /) J Alexon International Limited ([ Alexon ) %
I #% & First Dynamic @ = 7 — B #7T R &K o F Ut -
First Dynamic + Royal Pacific & Alexon 5 # 12 % # &
664,677,4688 K 2 7R (7 °

2 BREE)I 55 4 ([BRIE 4 ]) B #2155 3,750,000/ K 2 7]

f& 1% ° Royal Pacific 1 TC Chan Family Holdings Limited
([TCCFHL]) 2 &% A + MTCCFHLA M f# 55 £ 2 B #
A o Bt - BRI A1 3155 668,427,468K K 2 A
//'\ °

3 JEFTFE AL ([ 4 ) F B Alexon 2 8 E Z7T IR A1
25 R B E 664,677,468 K 1 AR5 °

4. SR B M 5E 4 B 12 75 5 4,500,000 K 2 @] R 15 N A
Well Success#)+ ZfRE + #5H Well Success2 Z7TIRA
20.0% 7 ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

EENEESHNES

RAFESIAFETMARER - EESNAR
Bl EEAMB AR LMEZR T EEX
RIRESEANE -

No contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR
RIBESFLBRERX S EPIEIBCERRERREME
FHEERRELMATE - A RERRER2012
F12A3BHANARRID BEITRAZ iHME#ER

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at
31 December 2012, the following shareholders had notified the

Symphony Holdings Limited 2012 Annual Report

Company of relevant interests and short positions in the issued KORBIAT
share capital of the Company:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company AR EEZKRO.1ETHIR
Number of issued Percentage of
ordinary shares held the issued
BRIRHEE share capital
Direct Deemed Total of the Company
Name of shareholder Notes  Capacity interests interests interests AR CET
B3R & BR’ EEfR HRAKEER arEs REERL
Well Success 1 Beneficial owner 664,677,468 - 664,677,468 50.81%
@A
First Dynamic 1 Interest of controlled - 664,677,468 664,677,468 50.81%
corporation
REAE
Royal Pacific 1 Interest of controlled - 664,677,468 664,677,468 50.81%
corporation
REAE
TC Chan Family Holdings Limited 2 Interest of controlled - 664,677,468 664,677,468 50.81%
("TCCFHL") corporation
REAE
Chan Ting Chuen ("Mr. Chan”) 2 Beneficial owner, and 3,750,000 664,677,468 668,427,468 51.10%
BREENI(TFR5E4]) interest of controlled
corporation
RRARKERE
Ng Shuk Fong (“Madam Ng"“) 2 Spouse - 668,427,468 668,427,468 51.10%
R ([R&L]) [N
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("Wealthplus”)

corporation
REhE

EERE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED) FTERR(E)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company KR FEFERO.17BTHIR (7 (&)
(Continued)
Number of issued Percentage of
ordinary shares held the issued
BETRANE share capital
Direct Deemed Total of the Company
Name of shareholder Notes  Capacity interests interests interests  {EADREET
BRR T R’ EERER HERAREER aEs RAEE G
Alexon International Limited 1 Interest of controlled - 664,677,468 664,677,468 50.81%
("Alexon”) corporation
R
Sze Sun Sun Tony ("Mr. Sze") 3 Interest of controlled - 664,677,468 664,677,468 50.81%
iR ([ HesE 4 D) corporation
R
Lau Yuk Wah ("Madam Lau") 3 Spouse = 664,677,468 664,677,468 50.81%
(T8t Bofe
Frensham Investments Limited 4 Beneficial owner and 62,999,572 664,677,468 727,677,040 55.63%
("Frensham”) interest of controlled
corporation
RRARKERE
Pou Yuen Industrial (Holdings) 4 Interest of controlled - 727,677,040 727,677,040 55.63%
Limited (“Pou Yuen") corporation
EXIX(&E)ERAR(ER)) R
Yue Yuen Industrial Limited 4 Interest of controlled - 727,677,040 727,677,040 55.63%
("Yue Yuen Industrial”) corporation
RTIZERAR(HRTIZE] R
Pou Hing Industrial Company 4 Interest of controlled - 727,677,040 727,677,040 55.63%
Limited ("Pou Hing ") corporation
R
Yue Yuen Industrial (Holdings) 4 Interest of controlled - 727,677,040 727,677,040 55.63%
Limited ("Yue Yuen") corporation
HREIX(EE)ERAR(H#T)) R
Wealthplus Holdings Limited 4 Interest of controlled - 727,677,040 727,677,040 55.63%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

FERR(E)

KR TFEFERO.17BTHI R (7 ()

(Continued)

Nu._:mber of issued Percentage of

ordinary shares held the issued

/= =2 .

ERTRHEE share capital

Direct Deemed Total of the Company

Name of shareholder Notes  Capacity interests interests interests  {EADREET

BRR T R’ EEER ERARPER ars RAEG

Pou Chen Corporation 4 Interest of controlled - 727,677,040 727,677,040 55.63%

("Pou Chen") corporation

BN IX(RE)ERLA(ER]) R

Shah Capital Management Beneficial owner 206,318,375 - 206,318,375 15.77%

FiA

Notes: Wit -

1. As at 31 December 2012, Well Success was directly interested in 1. R 2012 F 12 A 31 H - Well Success B # # &
664,677,468 shares of the Company. First Dynamic held more than 664,677,468 K 7% 2 &] IR 17 © First Dynamic ¥ & Well
one-third of the issued share capital of Well Success. Each of Royal Success 8 = 7 — B #F 7T R A ° Royal Pacific &% Alexon
Pacific and Alexon held more than one-third of the issued share 7 FI#% B First Dynamici8 = 5 — 2 & 77R A o AUt -
capital of First Dynamic. Accordingly, First Dynamic, Royal Pacific and First Dynamic + Royal Pacific % Alexon 5 # 12 /3 15 &
Alexon were deemed to be interested in 664,677,468 shares of the 664,677,468/2 K 2\ a])iR 17 °
Company.

2. Madam Ng is the wife of Mr. Chan, a director of the Company. Royal 2. RBL+BAN A EFEEEERZF ° Royal Pacific
Pacific is wholly-owned by TCCFHL, which in turn is wholly-owned TCCFHLZ2 E# A * TCCFHLAIB [FE £ 2 B H ° R
by Mr. Chan. As at 31 December 2012, Royal Pacific was deemed 2012412 A31H - Royal Pacifici#17 3755 664,677,468
to be interested in 664,677,468 shares of the Company (see Note BRAEALGIRD (ZHFT) » R ALERRLZ LRI BF
1), therefore both Mr. Chan and Madam Ng were deemed to be H664,677,468 8 A NG « W) - BALEERE
interested in 664,677,468 shares of the Company. Furthermore, Mr. 3,750,000 K 2\ a]fR 17+ Bt - RL T HIEABE R
Chan was directly interested in 3,750,000 shares of the Company. F668,427,4688 K2 GJR 17
Accordingly, Madam Ng was deemed to be interested in a total of
668,427,468 shares of the Company.

3 Madam Lau is the wife of Mr. Sze, a director of the Company. As 3 FLZ BRI EFIEERZF o R2012F12 731
at 31 December 2012, Mr. Sze was interested in the entire issued A - i EFFEAlexon £ EE HITRA » MR BIE
share capital of Alexon, therefore he was deemed to be interested K \F1664,677,468f s (2 HT7E1) o Bt - F|Z 1%
in 664,677,468 shares of the Company (see Note 1). Accordingly, I E 664,677,468k N EIR (7
Madam Lau was deemed to be interested in a total of 664,677,468
shares of the Company.

4. Frensham was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pou Yuen which in turn 4. HK20124 12 H31 A + Frensham B 7 # 5 62,999,572

was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yue Yuen Industrial. Yue Yuen
Industrial was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pou Hing which in turn
was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yue Yuen. Wealthplus, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Pou Chen, held over one-third of the entire issued
share capital of Yue Yuen. As at 31 December 2012, Frensham held
more than one-third of the issued share capital of Well Success and
was therefore deemed to be interested in 664,677,468 shares of the
Company. In addition, Frensham had a direct interest in 62,999,572
shares of the Company. Accordingly, all of Frensham, Pou Yuen, Yue
Yuen Industrial, Pou Hing, Yue Yuen, Wealthplus and Pou Chen were
or deemed to be interested in 727,677,040 shares of the Company.
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A LG -+ T4 H Well Successi =7 — 2 #7742
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

The Company has not been notified of any other relevant
interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2012.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
largest and top five customers were approximately 54% and 89%
of the Group’s total sales, respectively.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group's largest and five largest suppliers were less than 22% and
32% of the Group’s total purchases, respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company which, to the knowledge of the directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interests
in the share capital of any of the five largest customers of the
Group.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
totalling approximately HK$62,000 (2011: HK$200,000).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's employee emolument policy is set up by the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) on the basis of the merit,
qualification and competence of the Group’s employees.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY (CONTINUED)

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Board, as authorised by shareholders at the annual general
meeting, having regard to the operating results of the Company,
individual performance and prevailing market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was set up in December 2005,
advising the Board on the emoluments of the directors and senior
management. The Company has adopted a share option scheme
as an incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of
the scheme are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company'’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 23 to 31 of
this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned on 17 June 2011
as auditor of the Company. BDO Limited was subsequently
appointed as auditor of the Company.

The financial statements have been audited by BDO Limited who
will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
CHAIRMAN
Chan Ting Chuen

Hong Kong, 28 March 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIHE

Symphony Holdings Limited (“Symphony” or “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries “Group”) recognises the value and
importance of achieving high standard of corporate governance,
aiming at providing sufficient transparency, quality of disclosure as
well as effective risk control to investors.

The Company has adopted and complied with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Exchange”) (“Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, only with
deviations from code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term and are subject to re-election.
Directors of the Company (”Directors”) (including non-executive
Directors) were not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings
in accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-law of the Company.
Each Director is effectively appointed under an average term of
three years.

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
and other non-executive directors should also attend general
meetings. One of the independent non-executive directors who
is also the chairman of the audit committee attended the annual
general meeting held on 12 June 2012 ("AGM"), he shared
his observations at the AGM with the remaining non-executive
directors.

At a special general meeting held on 7th November 2012, an
independent non-executive director was present to understand
the view of the shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

LRELESE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The primary role of the board of Directors of the Company
("Board") is to protect and enhance long-term shareholders’
value. It focuses on the Group’s overall strategic policy, monitors
performance and offers proper supervision for effective
management. As at 31 December 2012, the Board consisted of 11
Directors (including the Chairman of the Board), amongst which
6 are executive Directors and 5 are Non-executive Directors of
whom 4 are independent.

The positions of Chairman and Managing Director (being defined
as Chief Executive Officer in the CG Code) are held separately
by Mr. Chan Ting Chuen and Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony respectively.
The Chairman of the Board provides leadership and management
of the Board. On the other hand, the Managing Director focuses
on managing the day-to-day operation of the business of the
Group. This segregation of roles ensures a balance of power and
authority.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing business strategy and managing day-to-day
administration and operations of the Group’s business to the
Managing Director and the senior management. While allowing
management with substantial autonomy to run and to develop
the business, the Board will review the delegated functions and
work tasks periodically.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
(“INEDs"”) came from diverse business and professional
backgrounds, bringing in valuable expertise and experience that
promotes the best interests of the Group and its shareholders.
The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all INEDs independent.

The Company provides Continuous Professional Development
("CPD") training and relevant materials to Directors to help ensure
that they are kept abreast of the latest changes in the commercial,
legal and regulatory environment in which the Group conduct its
business and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and duties of listed company director. In addition,
attendance at external forums of briefing session (including
delivery of speeches) on the relevant topics also counts toward
CPD training.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

LRELRSE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) BEEE2(4H)
Self-study
by reading
seminar
material Attending

Name LBEmHE seminars
2= BERHE SEAHE
Executive Directors BITES
Chan Ting Chuen PREE)| 4
Sze Sun Sun Tony il it 4
Chang Tsung Yuan SR HEH 4
Chan Lu Min ks v
Chen Fang Mei BRI 4
Ho Ting Seng A 4
Non-executive Director FHITES
Li I Nan FEF 4
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTES
Cheng Kar Shing R 4
Feng Lei Ming & A 4
Ho Shing Chak fal k2 4
Huang Shenglan =HE v/

All Directors have full, timely and direct access to the services and
advice from company secretary of the Company.
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LRELIRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Board conducted 22 meetings, the Directors’
attendance at the board meetings and general meetings is set out

EEg(H)

RACEFE  E2eXHAEM2REHE BN
BExe  BRREFARgRBEREIAENEZEH

as follows:— FEMCERIIT K -
Annual Extraordinary

Board General General
Name Meetings Meeting Meeting
- =g RRBFERE RERSBIAE
Executive Directors HITES
Chan Ting Chuen BREE) || 22/22 1/1 1/1
Sze Sun Sun Tony MEHT T 22/22 1/1 0/1
Chang Tsung Yuan SR 7122 0/1 0/1
Chan Lu Min ERESR 4/22 0/1 0/1
Chen Fang Mei S 10/22 01 0/1
Ho Ting Seng (Gl 22/22 1/ 0/1
Non-executive Director FHITES
Li I Nan T3 12/22 0N 01
Independent Non-executive BYKGITES

Directors
Cheng Kar Shing B, 8/22 0/1 0/1
Feng Lei Ming w55 A 6/22 0/1 0/1
Ho Shing Chak AT 22 0/22 01 01
Huang Shenglan EREEE 4/22 0/1 11
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FHEES

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) was set up for the purpose of advising the Board on
and reviewing the remuneration policy and other remuneration
related matters for all Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee assesses the performance and approves
the terms of the service contracts (if any) of executive Directors.

Members of Remuneration Committee
Mr. Feng Lei Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Kar Shing

Mr. Ho Shing Chak

Symphony Holdings Limited 2012 Annual Report
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Remuneration package is performance-based and the
recommended remuneration package includes salaries, bonuses
and share incentive scheme. During the year under review,
the Remuneration Committee considered the packages of the
executive Directors and senior management, taking into account
the business performance of the Company, market practices,
competitive market conditions and the expertise and experience
of the respective individuals. Non-executive Directors are
compensated with the aim to fairly represent their efforts and
time dedicated to the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (”Audit Committee”)
was established with specific written terms of reference. The
Audit Committee oversees the audit process and provides an
independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process and the internal control procedures.

Members of Audit Committee
Mr. Ho Shing Chak (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Kar Shing

Mr. Feng Lei Ming

Mr. Li I Nan

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its responsibilities. The Audit Committee met two times
in 2012 during which members of the Audit Committee reviewed
with the external auditor and senior management the financial
results of the Group as well as the accounting principles and
practices being adopted, internal control and financial reporting
matters. Our Chief Financial Officer, senior management and the
external auditor attended the meetings to respond to any queries
raised by the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”) was established with specific written terms
of reference. It is responsible for advising the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive.
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LRELESE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure and composition of the Board, considered the
directors succession planning, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive directors.

Members of Nomination Committee
Mr. Ho Shing Chak (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Shenglan

Mr. Li I Nan

BOARD/COMMITTEES MEETINGS AND MINUTES

During the year under review, management provided appropriate
and sufficient information to the Directors and Board members in
a timely manner to keep them abreast of the latest developments
of the Company to discharge their responsibilities. The attendance
of individual members of the Board and other Board Committees
meetings during the financial year ended 31 December 2012 is set
out in the table below:

REZEE(HA)

RACBEE  REZEERNETSRERMA
X TR ESEER S MBI RITESH
BN -

REEZESEERE
IR EE(EE)
EBELLE
FHEBEE

EEE ZECSSERTELHE

RAEEFE BEEECERAEENZEEMX
BRELEIFTEER  FEFEZEAQFN
RHMERABITEENRE - 8220126124
NALEMBEERE  SEFEREBREEKEN
SRLFRLEIM TR

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Directors Committee Committee Committee

2 BEREEY FHEEE REEEY

Non-executive Director FHITES

Li I Nan &5 2/2 N/A 11

Independent Non-executive BYKEHTES

Directors

Cheng Kar Shing BRI K 12 1/1 N/A

Feng Lei Ming FEEHA 1/2 11 N/A

Ho Shing Chak B2 2/2 11 11

Huang Shenglan HHE N/A N/A 11
Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committees meetings EEeNETECNO RO IERMEEMLIE @5
have been recorded in sufficient detail. Draft and final versions of R E R N RERAEE NG R E NS ERRE

minutes of the Board and other Board Committees were sent to
all Directors or Committees members for comments and records
within a reasonable time after the meeting.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

A Nomination Committee was established in March 2012
which is chaired by an independent non-executive director and
consists of a majority of independent non-executive directors. All
appointments, resignations and removals of Directors and the
succession plan are subject to the approval of the Board.

Under the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors (including INEDs)
must retire, and shall be eligible for re-election at each annual
general meeting. This year, Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Messrs. Sze Sun
Sun Tony, Ho Ting Seng and Ho Shing Chak shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and all being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. Details of their biographies are set out
in the circular to shareholders.

As at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors has a service
contract with the Company or any members of the Group that
will not expire or is not determinable by the employer within 1
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, INTERNAL
CONTROL, GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility of the Group’s system of
internal control, corporate governance compliance and assessment
and management of risks.

To enable the Board to fulfill the above task, the Board designs
procedures to identify and manages risks that might adversely
impact the Group’s business operations. This is achieved through
establishment of policies and procedures such as the approval
of detailed operational and financial reports, budgets and plans
provided by the management of the business operations; periodic
review of actual results against budget or forecast; review by the
Audit Committee of the ongoing work of the Group’s internal
audit and risk management functions.

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee reviews on a regular
basis the corporate governance structure and practices within
the Group and monitors compliance on an ongoing basis. It also
reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the internal control
systems to ensure its sufficiency.
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LRELRES

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

A summary of remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, BDO Limited, for audit services and non-audit services
for the financial years ended 31 December 2012 is as follows:

BT <

HE202F12A31BIENEFBFE - AR
ABM M A B EER G EBAERA
AIFTIRE AT LIRS R IEEZ RIS BN & 474 a0
—|T :

Nature of services RIEMHE
Audit services FRTRS
Other services E A ARAE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, each of them confirmed his compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code for the
financial year ended 31 December 2012.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2012 which give a true and fair view of the state of
financial affairs of the Company.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Directors have reviewed the soundness, adequacy and
application of accounting, financial and other controls of the
Company and thereby promoting effective and better control
within the Group.
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SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the significance of maintaining an effective
two-way communication with its stakeholders. Designated
management meets with research analysts and institutional
investors on an on-going basis and provides them with the
latest and comprehensive information about the corporate
developments of the Group. In addition, the Company utilizes its
website (www.symphonyholdings.com) as a channel to provide
updated information in a timely manner in order to strengthen the
communication with its stakeholders.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company. Pursuant to By-laws 58 of the Company, shareholders
may convene a special general meeting in the following manner:

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. Resolutions at
general meetings are decided on a poll which is conducted by the
Company Secretary and scrutinized by the Share Registrar. The
results of the poll are published on the websites of the Group and
HKEX.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained sufficient public float at over 40%
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

YR 3 L

|IBDO

TE:E | +8522218 8288
{8E : +85228152239

Tel: +8522218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

ERETHERI5
K& H 251

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Symphony Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to 151, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Shiu Hong NG

Practising Certificate Number: P03752

Hong Kong, 28 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FeEzEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #F2012412H31H 1 F/Z

2012 2011
Notes HKD’000 HKD'000
Likss FTHET FET
(Restated)
(B=E3))
Revenue ) 5 1,967,574 2,478,280
Cost of sales SHER A (1,772,722) (2,096,488)
Gross profit EF 194,852 381,792
Other income H A 122,160 18,571
Distribution and selling expenses DEREERS (160,952) (170,223)
Administrative expenses THAX (218,084) (215,479)
Finance costs BERK A 6 (8,365) (2,302)
Other expenses HpA (86,644) (8,862)
Increase in fair value of BEYEANFEELM
investment properties 33,843 75,195
Impairment loss on interests in jointly LRI I B B R 2 11
controlled entities REEE (20,512) =
Share of results of jointly controlled entities i 3£[E1Z 4| Z 8L 245 (59,274) (21,184)
(Loss)/profit before income tax expense MEi AT (E518) % F (202,976) 57,508
Income tax expense FHI1E 7 (21,370) (21,652)
(Loss)/profit for the year EE(EE), 8 (224,346) 35,856
Other comprehensive income/(expense) HE2HEW A/ (Bx%)
Surplus arising on revaluation of properties ¥ ¥ SEEREL 2 B 35,144
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation #)¥ & EMELS 2
of properties EERIE A & (7,548)
Release of deferred tax liabilities arising on  #[E H &Y ¥ B W EEE
revaluation of properties upon disposal IR IR E
of properties 11,554 -
Fair value gain/(loss) on available-for-sale  AItEHERE N FEBEUKZE
investments (FEX) 670 (581)
Release of investments revaluation reserve  H&E QBRI HILERE 2 Bfh
to profit or loss upon disposal of B
available-for-sale investments =
Translation reserve released on closure of  [& (& s B EA tL A1 4 2 52
a jointly controlled entity 3)
Exchange differences arising on translation &SN FTEE A RIPE HITE
of foreign operations =8 10,109 35,816
Share of other comprehensive income/ GHREESEBEMEE
(expense) of jointly controlled entities WA (Fs) 1,701 (3,029)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Fe2EkaR
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #F2012412H31H 1F F/Z

Notes
Fd3E
Other comprehensive income for the year /& H b H i 2 EUA
(net of tax) (BR718F5E)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FE2E(FAR) WAL
for the year
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: EEFE (BR),aFl
Owners of the Company EN/NSIE =N
Non-controlling interests FEIE R A
Total comprehensive (expense)/income fElhiza (), IRAREE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company AARER A
Non-controlling interests PR R
(Loss)/earnings per share B (EE) B
- Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EARREEECEW) 1

2012

HKD’000

FET

40,300

(184,046)

(214,346)

(10,000)

(224,346)

(176,778)
(7,268)

(184,046)

(16.39)

FUEEARAR 2012 FERE

2011
HKD'000
FET
(Restated)
(BE%))

59,799

95,655

23,811

12,045

35,856

76,276
19,379

95,655

2.16
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIk R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #F2012412H31H 1 F/Z

Notes
B E
Non-current assets EMBENEEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BER#& 12
Investment properties wEME 13
Prepaid lease payments TR ERIER 14
Deposit paid for acquisition of WHE— IR B
an investment property ke 18
Interests in jointly controlled HFEZGHIE R
entities 15
Advances to jointly controlled BT R
entities B8 15
Available-for-sale investments ATHIHERE 16
Deferred tax assets REFTEA E 22
Tax recoverable FEIRMIIA
Club debentures BES
Restricted bank deposit ZIRHIERTTIEK 20(a)
Current assets mBEE
Inventories [E= 17
Amounts due from jointly FEUH R 6 B 58
controlled entities FIE 15
Trade and other receivables B 5 KM eI
BETX 18
Prepaid lease payments TEHEERIE 14
Pledged bank deposit ERRITE 20(b)
Bank balances and cash RITHEB RIS 20(0)
Assets classified as held for sales AIEEEEE 33
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2012
HKD’000
FET

571,383
506,880
291,363

150,288
1,242
108,348
2,334
18,457
45,414

2,003
3,729

1,701,441

254,211
4,212
328,225
7,394

78,319
480,102

1,152,463
120,383

1,272,846

2011 2010
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE3) (BE%)
362,443 331,097
923,432 512,962
19,382 19,054
44,390 -
42,383 91,217
171,388 171,388
5,665 6,246
13,132 12,266
23,214 23,214
2,003 2,003
1,607,432 1,169,447
346,028 281,499
23,936 23,693
416,532 345,947
541 518
277,715 365,519
1,064,752 1,017,176
1,064,752 1,017,176




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEAMBRRE
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #F2012412H31H 1F F/Z

2012 2011 2010
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHx FHBT FHBT
(Restated) (Restated)
(B&E7)) (BE&E5)
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMEES
BRFX 551,668 484,407 451,064
Amounts due to jointly FERT ARSI B S
controlled entities HIE 24,259 25,286 12,577
Bank borrowings ERIBTER 437,426 120,000 80,000
Tax payable FERIE 75,293 56,860 55,483
1,088,646 686,553 599,124
Net current assets REEEFE 184,200 378,199 418,052
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRLREBAE 1,885,641 1,985,631 1,587,499
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFREAE 74,257 86,201 60,923
1,811,384 1,899,430 1,526,576
Capital and reserves AR R
Share capital (&N 130,804 130,804 436,011
Share premium and reserves Bt 5 18 K A48 1,360,684 1,564,262 988,813
Equity attributable to owners of R RE NGRS
the Company 1,491,488 1,695,066 1,424,824
Non-controlling interests JEFE IR M 2 319,896 204,364 101,752
1,811,384 1,899,430 1,526,576

The consolidated financial statements on pages 34 to 151 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 28 March
2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHAN Ting Chuen
BRI

BREMEFI1S1BENEEMIEHRERIIARRF]
EEEMN2013F3A28A R NI - WH
THEERKREE

SZE Sun Sun Tony
HE# #

FUEEARAR 2012 FERE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MEBRRAE

As at 31 December 2012 #F20124¢12431H 1 F/F

2012 2011
Notes HKD’000 HKD'000
M=E FHET T
Non-current assets JEMENEE
Investments in subsidiaries WEAM B AR 37 988 988
Amounts due from subsidiaries [ NG e 37 2,001,224 1,501,707
2,002,212 1,502,695
Current assets MEEE
Other receivables H b FEUBR X 18 4,468 427
Bank balances and cash SRITHEBRIES 78,458 128,241
82,926 128,668
Current liabilities MEBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHB AR IE 37 476,580 380,650
Other payables Hfth S BR X 21 2,731 385
Bank borrowings RITER 23 310,064 =
789,375 381,035
Net current liabilities SEREEE (706,449) (252,367)
Net assets BERAE 1,295,763 1,250,328
Capital and reserves AN Kl
Share capital RS 24 130,804 130,804
Share premium and reserves R RE RS 34 1,164,959 1,119,524
1,295,763 1,250,328

The financial statements on pages 34 to 151 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board on 28 March 2013 and are
signed on its behalf by:

CHAN Ting Chuen
BREJ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z2012F 12431 H i1 F/&E

Attributable to owners of the Company

RLRREHEARL
Properties Investments Non-
revaluation revaluation controlling
Share Contributed ~ Share  reserve  reserve Translation  Retained interests

capital  surplus  Premium  MEERE  REEfH  reseve  profits Tota  FERK Total

Bk EHER  ROEE b BE EXRE EAER a3t i &

HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000

THE GROUP K50 Tt TR TEr  TEr  TEr  TEm AT TEL AL TEn

At 1 January 2011, as originally MONE1A1B(BE5))

reported 436,011 - 364638 109,652 106 79328 418495 1408230 101752 1509982
Effect of change in accounting policies 53 &8/ iR 28

(note 2(a)) ELED) - - - - - - 16,594 16,594 - 16,594
At 1 January 2011, as restated RONEIA1B(EES) 436,011 - 364638 109,652 106 79328 435089 1424824 101752 1526576
Profit for the year, as restated EEER - - - - - - B8 2811 12,045 35,856
Surplus arising on revaluation of DEERENEL ES

properties - - - B4 - - - h14 - B4
Deferred tax liabity arsing on NEBRHEREL ER

revaluation of properties TERE - - - (7.548) - - - (7.548) - (7.548)
Fair value logs on avalable-for-sale — T{HAERAATER

investments 2% - - - - (581) = = (581) = (581)
Buchange differences arising on B EBHEENELTE

translation of foreign operations 2 - - - 1142 - 2340 - 848 7334 35816
Translation reserve released on closure  [E % i BB

of a jointly controlled entity pEe = = = = = B) = B) = B)
Share of other comprehensive expense {52t FBS[E B RAizA

of jointly controlled entities T - - - - - (3.029) - (3.029) - (3,029)
Other comprehensive income and -~ EEE#EARARER

(expense) for the year - - - BB (581) 24308 - 52465 7334 59799
Total comprehensive income and -~ FERARAREREE

(expense) for the year - - - BB (581) 24308 23811 76,276 19379 95,65
Additional acquistion of a subsidiary — WE-HEARENER - - - - - - B30 13720 (13720 =
Dividend paid (Note 10) BRREGH0) - - - - - - (3941)  (39.241) - (39.241)
Issie of shares upon open offer ARRE KR 218,006 - (1903) - - - - 26103 - 16103
Capital injection from FERER CTE

non-controling interests - - - - - - - - 9731 29737
Released upon partal disposal o~ HEHRHEA Tz

asubsidiary - - - - - - 3384 3384 67216 70,600
Share consalidation, Rivat - Bsldigs

capital reduction and sub-division (23213 523213 - - - - - - - -

At31December 2011, asrestated ~ B0NME12A3NB(EES)) 130804 523213 362735 138390 (@75 103636 436,763 1695066 204364 1899430

wesEaRAR 2012 450 39
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z2012412A31H 1FF/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATRRRAARS

Properties  Investments Non-
revaluation revaluation controlling
Share Contributed ~ Share  reserve  reserve Translation  Retained interests
capital  surplus  Premium  WEEH  REEH  reseve  profits Total  #ERK Total
Rt EEER®  ROEE 1] BE EXfRE  ofEd it & @t
HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
THE GROUP $£R Thn T TR TEr  TRnr TR TEn TEr  TEnr TEn
At 31 December 2011, as restated RONENANB(RES) 130804 523213 362735 1383%0 (475 103636 436763 1695066 2043064 1,899,430
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - - (1434)  (14346) (10,0000 (224346)
Surplus arising on revaluation of NEELETELZBR
properties - - - 18462 - - - 18462 462 18924
Deferred tax iablty aising on NEEHEREL B
revaluation of properties HEaE = - - (2.469) - - - (2469) - (2,469)
Release of deferred tax liabiities arising. &t ENERBENEESE
on revaluation of properties upon 7 EERIERE
disposal of properties - - - 11,55 - - - 11,55 - 11,55
Realisation of revaluation reserveon  HENZRERNFEELL
the disposal of buikdings REER - - - (#8319 = - B3 = = =
Fair value gain on avalable-for-sale  FHEERALTEENE
investments - - - - 670 - - 670 - 670
Release to profit orloss upon disposal ~ AEIHETHHERE L
of available-for-sales investments E = = - - (189) = = (189) = (189)
Exchange differences arising on BEBHEENELTE
translation of foreign operations 22 = - - (1,949) - 9,788 - 7,839 210 10,109
Share of other comprehensive income  (E XRIEHERE A
of jointly controlled entities WA - - - - - 1,701 - 1701 - 1,701
Other comprehensive incomeand ~— EEEBEARARER
(expense) for the year - - - () 481 11,489 48319 37,568 2,732 40,300
Total comprehensive income and FEGARARRR4E
(expense) for the year - - - @n) 481 11489 (165967)  (176,778) (7268)  (184,046)
Dividend paid (Note 10) BRRE(0) = = = = = - (13,0800 (13,080 - (13,080
Change in terms of sharing of -MEARESSL
asubsidiary - - - - - - (13700 (137200 13720 -
Capital injection from FARER TR
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 109080 109,080
At 31 December 2012 R012612A318 130804 523213 362735 115,609 6 115125  2439% 1491488  3198%6 1,811,384
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GeHaRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # F2012412H31H 1 F/Z

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER Fi&T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES TeEEE
(Loss)/profit before income tax expenses MR (E38) 5 F (202,976) 57,508
Adjustments for: T
Interest income FBUA (7,775) (7,978)
Finance costs B & AN 8,365 2,302
Impairment loss on interests in AR R E B A RS A
jointly controlled entities E R 20,512 -
Share of results of jointly controlled entities G HEIERI TR EE 59,274 21,184
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BEREETE
equipment 43,362 40,597
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T E IR 1,771 541
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BELREEE
equipment 622 1,924
Write off of property, plant and equipment YIE - R KR E R 11,218 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWZ - HE REEMER
equipment and prepaid lease payments He Rk (59,700) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEERE KR
investments (189) =
Increase in fair value of investment properties & &5 A FEEEMN (33,843) (75,195)
(Reversal)/provision of allowance for RITIREE(215)
bad and doubtful debts (1,880) 3,640
Allowance for inventories, net FEHER S 12,507 3,831
Operating cash flows before movements HBEECHPANLLR SR
in working capital (148,732) 48,354
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL (M) 79,310 (55,517)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from FEMS H RS E R s IE (3 n),
jointly controlled entities A (2,384) 6,226
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 REMERERR L,
other receivables (€::hi) 90,503 (73,582)
Increase in trade and other payables Z 5 R EMFEA BRFIE 69,469 33,071
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KA/ (ARKEEEBHRS 88,166 (41,448)
Purchase of tax reserve certificates BEHNS (22,200) -
Overseas tax paid BEAHEINIIR (11,134) (3,081)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREBREH ((3)) (313)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED) IN ®E (AR ELZENRSEE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 54,763 (44,842)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FATeRER
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #F2012412H31H 1 F/Z

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FT

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZH
Investment in a jointly controlled entity HEHLEE TS (66,045) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE BMEKERK (82,259) (30,680)
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (122,113) (339,706)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HE [ HEERE R

investments 3,990 —
Deposit paid for acquisition of an investment BEREMELS

property (105,898) (44,390)
Increase in restricted bank deposit PR HIERT T SIE N (3,729) =
Increase in pledged bank deposit BRI T L AN (78,319) =
Interest received BURFLE 1,389 1,509
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME - BE KRR EHWES

and equipment 191,453 186
Proceeds from closure of a jointly controlled RART KR HIE B A e

entity - 1,121
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties &R EEIW 5,000 16,880
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ARRETHRESFHE (256,531) (395,080)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEEE
Net proceeds from issue of new shares NRBERD 2 F W

under open offer - 216,103
New bank loans obtained EEHIBTER 1,116,258 263,870
Proceeds from partial disposal of interest & — @A R Hm s RS

in a subsidiary = 94,099
Capital injection from non-controlling interest  FEIZARIERS 7 )T & 109,080 29,737
Dividend paid BRRE (13,080) (39,241)
Repayment of bank loans RITEFER (798,832) (223,870)
(Repayment to)/advance from jointly controlled (B3 F), & @8 HREH T

entities (1,027) 12,709
Interest paid BEAFE (8.365) (2,302)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RERMEITHRSTFE 404,034 351,105
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND RERBRESEEBYRDFE

CASH EQUIVALENTS 202,266 (88,817)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AREERRAESESEYES

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 277,715 365,519
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE NEERSENTE

CHANGES ON CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,013
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT KRS RASSEYEHE

END OF YEAR, REPRESENTED BY BITEBRAES

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 480,102 277,715
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GENERAL

Symphony Holdings Limited was incorporated in Bermuda
as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The address of the registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and the principal
place of business of the Company is located on the 10th
Floor of Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road, North Point,
Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
trading of footwear, trading, retailing and distribution
of licensed footwear, apparels, swimming wear and
accessories, property investment and holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 37.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs -
EFFECTIVE 1 JANUARY 2012
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Except as explained below, the adoption of these
new/revised standards and interpretations has no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SeMEmERME

—REHR

MEEEERARNRABRESMK LA
BREEREME LA - HERONE BB
ERGAAERDE L™ o ANAQE M
= & 4 Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda + B B & ¥ i
2 AB B ARZES1050EERE10E -

AEENEIZXBAERERBMENRE
5 BREE - RE - FAREREMFE
5 TERNHE RERFEWE =
BB AR EEB O BN HIE3T -

RaBERMBRELZAN( EEBY
B EAERA )

(A) AT REBITEBMKERE
X8 - RA2012F1 818 ER
BRMBRELER - HEEREER
FT7RZEETA SERAE

BB - RERIE - IR
125 HEEE
({&5T)

BT XA E S - FRNZ SRR

AT R R R AT & A B4R
AMBHEERIASATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReaMBRRME

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax -
Recovery of Underlying Assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 introduce a rebuttable
presumption that an investment property which
is stated at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment
Property” is recovered entirely through sale. The
measurement of the deferred tax liability or deferred
tax asset reflects the tax consequences of recovering
the carrying amount of the investment property
entirely through sale. This presumption is rebutted
if the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If this presumption is rebutted,
the amount of deferred tax is measured based on the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the
investment property would be recovered, using the
appropriate tax rates enacted or substantially enacted
at the reporting date (see note 4(k)).

Symphony Holdings Limited 2012 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax -
Recovery of Underlying Assets (Continued)

The Group had investment properties measured at
fair value of HKD506,880,000 as at 31 December
2012 (31 December 2011: HKD923,432,000 and 1
January 2011: HKD 512,962,000) as set out in note
13. The Group has assessed that the presumption in
the amendments to HKAS 12 should be adopted in
respect of the Group's investment properties located
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") with a carrying amount of HKD506,880,000
(31 December 2011: HKD476,032,000 and 1 January
2011: HKD 257,773,000), accordingly the associated
deferred tax of these investment properties has
been re-measured on the presumption that they
are recovered entirely through sale. The Group has
rebutted the presumption in respect of its other
investment properties located in the PRC with carrying
amount of HKD447,400,000 and HKD255,189,000 as
at 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2011 respectively
as they are assessed to be depreciable and are held by
a subsidiary with a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time
rather than through sale. These properties have been
transferred to property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments during the year as evidenced
by commencement of owner-occupation. Deferred tax
in relation to these investment properties has not been
re-measured.

REMBRRME

RABBUBRELN( EBY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReaMBRRME

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(A) ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs -
EFFECTIVE 1 JANUARY 2012 (CONTINUED)
Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax -
Recovery of Underlying Assets (Continued)

This change in accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively in accordance with the amendments
to HKAS 12 and the comparative figures have been
restated. Accordingly, a third statement of financial
position as at 1 January 2011 has been presented. The
effects of the adoption of the amendments to HKAS
12 on the financial statements are summarised below:

Consolidated statement of FRUBIRRE
financial position

Decrease in deferred tax liabilities ERPERERD

Decrease in total non-current liabilites  JEREI & B4EEER D

Increase in net assets BEREEM

Increase in retained profits REAFIEM

Consolidated statement of comprehensive 44 2EWZER

income
Decrease/(increase) in PR RY
income tax expense (shm)
Decrease in loss/(decrease FRBERD/
in profit)/total comprehensive expense/ (&R ),/
(income) for the year BIEARY/ (RA)
Decrease in loss/(decrease AREEEAER
in profit) attributable EBRY/
to owners of the company CHFIRD)
Decrease in basic/diluted loss/earnings per RER /% 5EE,/
share (BF)RD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(CONTINUED)

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant

to the Group's consolidated financial statements have

been issued, but are not yet effective and have not

been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)
Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)

8w oN =

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities 2

Financial Instruments#

Consolidated Financial
Statements?

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?

Fair Value Measurements?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?
Investment entities?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

HKFRSs (Amendments) - Annual Improvements

2009-2011 Cycle

The improvements made amendments to four

standards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
2. ADOPTI

ON OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKFRSs (Amendments) - Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle (Continued)

(i)

(i)

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments clarify that the requirement
to present a third statement of financial
position when an entity applies an accounting
policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective
restatement or reclassification of items in its
financial statements is limited to circumstances
where there is a material effect on the
information in that statement of financial
position. The date of the opening statement
of financial position is the beginning of the
preceding period and not, as at present, the
beginning of the earliest comparative period.
The amendments also clarify that, except for
disclosures required by HKAS 1.41-44 and HKAS
8, the related notes to the third statement
of financial position are not required to be
presented. An entity may present additional
voluntary comparative information as long as
that information is prepared in accordance with
HKFRS. This may include one or more statements
and not a complete set of financial statements.
Related notes are required for each additional
statement presented.

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

The amendments clarify that items such as
spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing
equipment are recognised as property, plant and
equipment when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, such
items are classified as inventory.

Symphony Holdings Limited 2012 Annual Report

2. RMBBUBHRELEN(EEY
B EER ) (&)

BB B EER (IE2TF) —2009F
B20115F BRI FEKE (&

(i)

BEGHENFE 1RSI B
HR

HEFTAEEE —HERER
fER &R ER RN E B B K
FIFHIRB B EIHEH D
B AZ2IE=ZDYMBMR
KORE ERNBEBERS
B BRRARBREAZERN
B - MBARR KR A B
R —BRERERAGLZE -
JEN B ATIE R T B & F AT L'
MR - [RBEB G E
1414457 R BB G ER)
FBRAMTEWEIN - BRIER]
INEIBHBAZE =DM
KHTEE - BREAIZ2FIBINN B
FRELCBER - EARERAR
BEAMBREENRE - 1t
AREEE-—NRZHI/E - M
F—EXTBUBRE - HEE
ENFEINRKR 2T -

EREGIERE 16 ME

R M sk

BB EEEHEN  BRX

BNRESZESEERED
¥ BEAREBENTER A
HEBNSHERBME  BE
Bt DAl AEEAESE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKFRSs (Amendments) - Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

The amendments clarify that income tax
relating to distributions to holders of an equity
instrument and to transaction costs of an
equity transaction should be accounted for
in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes.
Depending on the circumstances these items of
income tax might be recognised in equity, other
comprehensive income or in profit or loss.

HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendments clarifies that in interim
financial statements, a measure of total assets
and liabilities for a particular reportable segment
need to be disclosed when the amounts are
regularly provided to the chief operating decision
maker and there has been a material change in
the total assets and liabilities for that segment
from the amount disclosed in the last annual
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation
of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require

the Group to separate items presented in other

comprehensive income into those that may be

reclassified to profit and loss in the future (e.g.

revaluations of available-for-sale financial assets) and

those that may not (e.g. revaluations of property, plant

and equipment). Tax on items of other comprehensive

income is allocated and disclosed on the same basis.

The amendments will be applied retrospectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReaMBRRME

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 32 - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off” and when a gross settlement
mechanism is considered equivalent to net settlement.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for all
recognised financial instruments that are set off under
HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar arrangement,
irrespective of whether they are set off under HKAS
32.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27 (2011) - Investment Entities

The amendments apply to a particular class of
businesses that qualify as investment entities. An
investment entity’s business purpose is to invest funds
solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income or both. It evaluates the performance of its
investments on a fair value basis. Investment entities
could include private equity organisations, venture
capital organisations, pension funds and investment
funds. The amendments provide an exception to the
consolidation requirements in HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements and require investment entities
to measure particular subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss rather than to consolidate them. The
amendments also set out the disclosure requirements
for investment entities. The amendments are applied
retrospectively subject to certain transitional provisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into
financial assets measured at fair value or at amortised
cost depending on the entity’'s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair
value gains or losses will be recognised in profit or
loss except for those non-trade equity investments,
which the entity will have a choice to recognise the
gains and losses in other comprehensive income.
HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of that liability is recognised
in other comprehensive income unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EeMBERRME

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether
or not that power is used in practice), exposure
or rights to variable returns from the investee and
the ability to use the power over the investee to
affect those returns. HKFRS 10 contains extensive
guidance on the assessment of control. For example,
the standard introduces the concept of “de facto”
control where an investor can control an investee
while holding less than 50% of the investee’s voting
rights in circumstances where its voting interest is
of sufficiently dominant size relative to the size and
dispersion of those of other individual shareholders to
give it power over the investee. Potential voting rights
are considered in the analysis of control only when
these are substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical
ability to exercise them. The standard explicitly requires
an assessment of whether an investor with decision
making rights is acting as principal or agent and also
whether other parties with decision making rights are
acting as agents of the investor. An agent is engaged
to act on behalf of and for the benefit of another
party and therefore does not control the investee
when it exercises its decision making authority. The
implantation of HKFRS 10 may result in changes in
those entities which are regarded as being controlled
by the Group and are therefore consolidated in the
financial statements. The accounting requirements in
the existing HKAS 27 on other consolidation related
matters are carried forward unchanged. HKFRS 10 is
applied retrospectively subject to certain transitional
provisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BHH4FEBBEHREEDN ([ FEE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") FESREAER |) ()
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements

Joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 have the same
basic characteristics as joint ventures under HKAS
31. Joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. Where the Group has
rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities
of the joint arrangement, it is regarded as a joint
operator and will recognise its interests in the assets,
liabilities, income and expenses arising from the joint
arrangement. Where the Group has rights to the
net assets of the joint arrangement as a whole, it is
regarded as having an interest in a joint venture and
will apply the equity method of accounting. HKFRS
11 does not allow proportionate consolidation. In an
arrangement structured through a separate vehicle, all
relevant facts and circumstances should be considered
to determine whether the parties to the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
Previously, the existence of a separate legal entity
was the key factor in determining the existence of a
jointly controlled entity under HKAS 31. HKFRS 11 will
be applied retrospectively with specific restatement
requirements for a joint venture which changes from
proportionate consolidation to the equity method and
a joint operation which changes from equity method
to accounting for assets and liabilities.

HKFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent
the disclosures requirements about interests in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements. It also
introduces new disclosure requirements, including
those related to unconsolidated structured entities.
The general objective of the standard is to enable users
of financial statements to evaluate the nature and risks
of a reporting entity’s interests in other entities and
the effects of those interests on the reporting entity’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EeMBERRME

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on
how to measure fair value when it is required or
permitted by other standards. The standard applies
to both financial and non-financial items measured
at fair value and introduces a fair value measurement
hierarchy. The definitions of the three levels in this
measurement hierarchy are generally consistent with
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS
13 defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The standard
removes the requirement to use bid and ask prices
for financial assets and liabilities quoted in an active
market. Rather the price within the bid-ask spread that
is most representative of fair value in the circumstances
should be used. It also contains extensive disclosure
requirements to allow users of the financial statements
to assess the methods and inputs used in measuring
fair values and the effects of fair value measurements
on the financial statements. HKFRS 13 can be adopted
early and is applied prospectively.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of these pronouncements.
The directors so far concluded that the adoption of
the amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 34 as part of
the Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle have no
impact on the Group’s annual financial statements.
In respect of the other new pronouncements, the
directors anticipate that more disclosures would be
made but are not yet in a position to state whether
they would have material financial impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the "HKFRSs"”) and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain properties and financial instruments, which
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods.

The functional currency of the Company is United
States dollars, while the consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars for
the convenience of the users of these consolidated
financial statements, as the Company is listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBERME
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in
which case the costs are deducted from equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments
to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from
business combinations whose acquisition dates
preceded 1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group
first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted
for in accordance with the transition requirements
in the standard. Such balances are not adjusted
upon first application of the standard. Subsequent
revisions to estimates of such consideration are
treated as adjustments to the cost of these business
combinations and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interest is
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EeMBERRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company is
able to exercise control. Control is achieved where
the Company, directly or indirectly, has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In accessing
control, potential voting rights that are presently
exercisable are taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Joint venture arrangements which involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which venturers
have joint control over the economic activity of the
entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly
controlled entities are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investments
in jointly controlled entities are initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the jointly controlled entities. When the
Group's share of losses of a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled
entity (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a jointly
controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EaMBERRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The requirements of “HKAS 39" are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investment
in a jointly controlled entity. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
“HKAS 36 — Impairment of Assets” as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying
amount, any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly
controlled entity, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the jointly controlled entity
are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the jointly
controlled entity that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Commission income is recognised when the services
on which the commissions are earned are provided in
accordance with the agreed terms.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably. Interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EaMBERRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The building component of owner-occupied leasehold
properties is stated at valuation less accumulated
depreciation. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which
would be determined using fair values at the end of
the reporting period. Increases in value arising on
revaluation are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of properties revaluation reserve. Decreases in value
arising on revaluation are first offset against increases
on earlier valuations in respect of the same property
and thereafter recognised in profit or loss. Any
subsequent increases are recognised in profit or loss
up to the amount previously charged and thereafter to
the properties revaluation reserve.

Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released from the properties revaluation reserve to
retained profits.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes
its purchase price and the costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
or fair value of items of property, plant and equipment
less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of the reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The annual depreciation rates of properties, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Freehold land in Taiwan Nil

Leasehold land and 2% -3%
building in Hong Kong
Buildings Shorter of useful lives or
the remaining lease term
Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful lives or

the remaining lease term

Plant and machinery 9% - 45%
Furniture, fixtures and 9% —20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 16% - 20%

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by an end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
properties revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale
or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EaMBERRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. These included
land held for future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values using the
fair value model, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at reporting date and
their fair value cannot be reliably determined at that
time. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

If an investment property becomes an item of
property, plant and equipment because its use
has changed as evidenced by commencement of
owner-occupation, the property’s deemed cost for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EaMBERRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as "prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of land and
buildings as finance lease of property, plant and
equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and will be reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EaMBERRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKD) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(translation reserve).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation
to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or jointly controlled entities that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are charged as expenses when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group'’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EaMBERRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding amounts used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affect neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in measuring
deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment
Property”. Unless the presumption is rebutted, the
deferred tax amounts on these investment properties
are measured using the tax rates that would apply on
sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EaMBERRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

All expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Club debentures are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment loss.

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified
into one of the three categories, including
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments other than
those financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of
which interest income is excluded in net gains or
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBERME

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories,

including financial assets held-for-trading and
those designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or

it is a part of an identified portfolio of
financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset
held-for-trading may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally
on that basis; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (Continued)

o it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 permits the entire combined contract
to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including non-current advance
to a jointly controlled entity, shareholders’
loan to a jointly controlled entity, amounts due
from jointly controlled entities, trade and other
receivables and bank balances and cash) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERME

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
investments revaluation reserve, until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that
do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end
of the reporting period (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty;

o breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal
payments;

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERME

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not
to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 60 to
90 days, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or loss
in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investments revaluation
reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if
an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.

REMBRRME

4. FESTEER(E

(i)

EHEE(H)
EREEREE)
HRRBHERAHENERE
E R E IR ZREE R
R TR, > B e R R (B S 1R
BORBAFTHFEETBMBE
AZAE R BRERBEEB
BaEBD - EEENERRE
HHINRE S B NS BB ML
EHER IR E AV SR o

A ENRARENRER
B TR AR BEERRR
m - MEERRERBRER
MEARFEEREMNEME
HBABERBERLNREBM
FEER - LA SRR
BEME - WRENAFEEE
AN BE 2 B 4 L e SRR (B S 1R 1R
HEMEMHAER - ADBERBRE
RERED -

UEBEABRAF 2012 FERE

79



80

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBERME

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables and amounts due to jointly controlled
entities and bank borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group and not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised initially
at its fair value less transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the
amount determined in accordance with “HKAS
37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with
"HKAS 18 — Revenue”.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERME

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

(ii)

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined
by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date is recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates during the
vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

At the time when the share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When share options are forfeited, i.e.
share options lapse as a result of resignation
of employees after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for services
are measured at the fair values of the services
received, unless that fair value cannot be reliably
measured, in which case the services received
are measured by reference to the fair value of
the share options granted. The fair values of
the services received are recognised as expenses
with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserves), when the counterparties
render services, unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
standard.

REMBRRME

4. FESTEER(E

RABEMKR  AEBRSEETLE
ERNRAEE  WREZXFEEEAGR
EBEIR - WA EIREREITR
H3R - AEEE A% EEN A @K
BE  BORTERERBER(HA)ME
€ o fifhsr —BEEN AN EEEERR
HARE(ER - ZEENREES O
LEHEAWEHEE - RERBANE
ERA/FAX - FRIFHBEERES —
ZERIAEHEIR - AIEREEERR
RZERIABEREAR °

TR EE BN EER LI - ZEENK
HEEAFASEESEHETHAIUKEIE
1B - EZIENHREET A SRZE
ERBEFERERAERRERSR
AIAMAREE © [@BOR EE1E S AN 1%
HERBUWA - FRIFEMEER A
AIAEBENR - EEBORERBER
RZERIABHIREAR ©

UEBEABRAF 2012 FERE

83



84

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EaMBERRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

(ii)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

o has control or joint control over the Group;

o has significant influence over the Group;
or

o is @a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

o the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

o one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

o both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

o one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

o the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RaMBRRME

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(ii)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Continued)

o the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

. a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

° that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

o children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

o dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker,
being the managing director of the Group, for the purpose
of resources allocation and performance assessment focuses
specifically on the assessment of operating performance
in each operating unit, which is the basis upon which the
Group is organised. Each operating unit is distinguished
based on types of goods or services delivered or provided,
i.e. footwear manufacturing, retailing and sourcing,
property investment and holding, and outlet malls. Financial
information on segment results and segment assets are
reqgularly provided to the chief operating decision maker
while no information of segment liabilities is provided. The
Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8 — Operating
Segments are as follows:

1. footwear manufacturing;

2. retailing and sourcing — retailing and provision of
sourcing services for branded apparel, swimwear and
accessories;

3. property investment and holding; and

4. outlet malls.

5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAEMBERME

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(A) SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue

and results by reportable and operating segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Footwear
manufacturing
BESE
HKD'000
TR

REVENUE £
External sales HNEE 1,818,239
Segment (loss)/profit 2 E(EHE) /EH (27,668)

Corporate income: ~ EWA -

~ Interest income FIBMA
-Gainondisposal  HEEHE
of available-for- R B
sale investments
- Others HipA
Central administrative  H 7 EAR 2R
costs

Impairment losson R EIHIEER
interests in jointly EnfRESS
controlled entities

Share of results of ~ {E L4
jointly controlled EREE
entities

Loss before income  BiRAIEE
tax expense

Note: Mz

The income from RRRATBA
outlet malls segment AT
is analysed as follows:

Gross revenue from S FEREGIA
concessionaire sales

Commission income  FSEFHEiEE
from concessionaire  FTEE%
sales

Symphony Holdings Limited 2012 Annual Report

5.

Retailing
and
sourcing
ZERKE
HKD'000
TR

139,657

(56,889)

7 RPE R (&)

(A) ZRERBERRE
TREJAKENZAIRE R LEED
BRI RADN

HZ2012512831ALEE

Property
Investment
and holding
NERER Outlet malls  Consolidated
BENF RAER T &E
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TER TER TER
(Note)
(FitzE)

8,665 1,013 1,967,574

35,842 (17,642) (66,357)

655

(65,452)

(20,512)

(59,274)

(202,976)

14,173




5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in Note 4. Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit
earned or the loss incurred by each segment without
allocation of interest income, gain on disposal of
available-for-sale investments, other income, central
administrative costs, impairment loss on interests in
jointly controlled entities and share of results of jointly
controlled entities. This is the measure reported to
the chief operating decision maker for the purpose of
resources allocation and performance assessment.

FEMBRRME
SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. oHERE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BZE2011F12A318LEFE
Property
Retailing Investment
Footwear and and holding
manufacturing sourcing MERER Outlet malls Consolidated
HEHE TEREE RENE FHRHT e
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FAL FHET FET FAT
REVENUE ]
External sales HohEeE 2,344,219 126,858 7,203 = 2,478,280
Segment profit/(loss) 5 EBE R (1E) 116,477 (44,464) 36,300 41,644 149,957
Corporate income: ~ EWA ¢
- Interest income FEWA 7,978
- Others HepA 1,169
Central administrative s R {THA A
Costs (80,412)
Share of results of {24
jointly controlled ERZA
entities (21,184)
Profit before income  BFATER
tax expense 57,508

AREDBHEARREAKEMN T4NE
SRR - o B A (B8 ) TR KRS E
DERDEFBWA - HERHHERE
Was ~ B - RRITERAA - HKRE
HIE BB R E S G A EE S B R AP
EESAENEN(EBE) - KHI2HER
EERRENREBUDRERNETHE
BRI -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5.

(B) SEGMENT ASSETS

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets by

reportable and operating segment:

Segment assets

2 EBE R (&’

(B) ZEEE

HARENEEDHNAEEEEN

LESMT

AIHEE

2012 2011

HKD’000 HKD'000

THET FHET

Footwear manufacturing HERE 562,371 897,063

Retailing and sourcing TE KRR 109,264 114,705

Property investment and holding MERERISHYE 791,785 641,474

Outlet malls B AR 646,324 459,506

Total segment assets DWEERE 2,109,744 2,112,748

Unallocated Ao 864,543 559,436

Consolidated assets REBE 2,974,287 2,672,184
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances FANERSEERIF RN D BEASEE

B BRBRTHRBIESERE - GHRA
THE SR - AHEERE R
MIBEE  EREBIE - gMES B
interests in jointly controlled entities, available-for- WHEEHEEHE - A HEEE
sale investments, deferred tax assets, tax recoverable, E - ZRHEIRITEHR - BEBRITEF
HMBITHEBRIREIN - IBEEER
BB REREEDBOER -

and allocating resources between segments, all assets
are allocated to reportable and operating segments
other than advance to jointly controlled entities,

club debentures, amounts due from jointly controlled
entities, assets classified as held for sales, restricted
bank deposit, pledged bank deposit and bank
balances and cash.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

meMBRRME
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. OEER(E)
() REVENUE FROM MAJOR PRODUCTS AND () REFEERRBRHEHKE
SERVICES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue KEFBERMERBEHOAEE RS D
from its major products and services: T -
2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
THERT FET
Footwear manufacturing HIERE 1,818,239 2,344,219
Retailing and sourcing TE KRS 139,657 126,858
Property investment and holding YERERIEEYE 8,665 7,203
Outlet malls BRFHEHT 1,013 =
1,967,574 2,478,280
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReaMBRRME

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(D) GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION
The Group's revenue from external customers by
geographical location of the delivery destinations
and information about its non-current assets by
geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

5. 2EER(E)

(D) HEER
REEBINBREP BN aRIEX B K
i@ B REIEREEEERIZE
EEE S BOFFBNT

The People’s Republic of China  ZE AR LFIE

Taiwan A
Hong Kong &
United States of America xH
Canada JIEYN

Other European countries EBUMBIR (27)
(Note i)

Vietnam i

Other Asian countries (Note ) H#ZMEIR (327)
Others (Note i) Hib(iZ1)
Notes:

i The geographical information for the revenue attributed to
each country is not available and the cost to capture such
information would be excessive.

i Non-current assets excluded advances to jointly controlled
entities, interests in jointly controlled entities, available-for-
sale investments, deferred tax assets, tax recoverable, club
debentures and restricted bank deposit.

Symphony Holdings Limited 2012 Annual Report

HKD'000

1,967,574 2,478,280

Non-current assets
located (Note if)
FRBEEMEN(772)
2012 2011 2012 2011
HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
TER TERL TER TET

Revenue from

external customers

RINRE P f s

178,636 190,068 1,097,393 971,477
- - 10,423 9,743

1.877 7,203 394,534 352,408
1,175,884 1,327,012 =
103,157 101,455 =
323,065 467,569 =
- - 17,564 16,019

98,937 240,124 - =
80,018 144,849 -

1,519,914 1,349,647
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FeaMBRRME
SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. OIER(E)
(E) INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS () EEEZFEHR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years RBEFEHEEERI0R U LHE
contributing over 10% of the total sales, all of which Flz(BErEAEBERRED )
are included in footwear manufacturing segment of ESE N
the Group, are as follows:
2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET FAT
Customer A BEE A 1,059,185 1,172,455
Customer B BRL 385,398 397,265
Customer C BEER - 362,236
Note: Customer C contributed approximately 7% of the total sales i BEEAGEZE2012F 12531 HIF FEAREEE
for the year ended 31 December 2012. 7% H) B o
FINANCE COSTS 6. REKE
2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET FH&T
Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable FFRESEE
within five years IR ERFS 2,302
All bank borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE2012F F2011F12A31BIEFEME

and 2011 contain a repayment on demand clause. BITERSEREREEIERNEHERK

FUEEARAR 2012 FERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBERRME
7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 7. #HE
The amount of income tax expense in the consolidated GAETEW R NSRS 5E

statement of comprehensive income represents:

2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
FRT FHET
(Restated)
(2&%5))
Current tax RERFEIE :
Hong Kong BE
— current year REE 324
— under provision in prior years BEFEN R EE 148
Other jurisdictions Hh RDER
— Enterprise income tax (“EIT") KEE —PEM
— current year 12,818 3,233
— EIT — under provision in prior years TENRBTFETTEG 6,348 1,083
— Land Appreciation tax i IB(E R 9,667 -
29,572 4,788
Deferred tax (Note 22) ELESE : (722
— current year REE (8,202) 16,864
Income tax expense FriSBim X 21,370 21,652
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

From 2008 to 2011, the Inland Revenue Department (“IRD")
issued protective profits tax assessments for additional
profits tax to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company relating to the years of assessment of 2001/2002
to 2004/2005 i.e. for the four financial periods ended 31
December 2004.

The Group had lodged objections with the IRD against
the protective profits tax assessments. The IRD agreed to
hold over the additional tax claimed subject to the relevant
subsidiaries’ purchases of tax reserve certificates (“TRCs")
amounted to approximately HKD23 million. These TRCs
were purchased and included in tax recoverable as at 31
December 2012 and 2011. In July and August 2012, the
Group purchased additional TRCs amounted to HKD10.2
million relating to the year of assessment of 2004/2005 at
the request of IRD.

In December 2011, the Deputy Commissioner of the IRD
issued his written determinations. Among others, he is of
the view that the wholly-owned subsidiaries referred to
above are subject to Hong Kong profits tax and confirmed/
revised the protective profits tax assessments for 2001/2002
to 2004/2005 in the amount of approximately HKD306
million in aggregate. In January 2012, the Group filed
notices of appeal to the Board of Review objecting to the
written determinations the IRD issued in December 2011.

In March 2012, the IRD also issued protective profits tax
assessments for profits tax or additional profits tax for
HKD90.5 million in aggregate in accordance with the
written determinations referred to above to the wholly-
owned subsidiaries concerned for the year of assessment
2005/2006. The Group had lodged objections with the IRD
against these protective profits tax assessments. The IRD
agreed to hold over the additional tax claimed subject to the
Group purchasing TRCs amounted to HKD12 million which
the Group did in July 2012.

7.

RaMBmRME

BiIE (&)

FREMNEHRDEMEFEAMGERE G
PRI E16.5%1H ©

E2008F £20114F + M5B LREEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EeMBERRME

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The protective assessments issued by IRD according to
his determination for additional profits tax in aggregate
of HKD396.5 million mentioned above for the years of
assessment from 2001/2002 to 2005/2006 were issued on
three alternative bases on the same set of profits for each
year of assessment.

In March 2011, the Group filed an application to the Court
for a judicial review contending, inter alia, whether the
IRD has the power to issue multiple assessments against
different group companies for the same set of profits for the
years of assessment of 2001/2002 to 2004/2005.

The judicial review proceedings were heard on the 1st and
2nd February of 2012. The judgment in respect of the
judicial review was handed down in May 2012. Among
others, the Group’s application for relief to quash each
of the assessments issued by the IRD and the conditional
holdovers were not granted. The Court of First Instance held
that the IRD can issue multiple assessments in respect of
the same set of profits to different taxpayers on alternative
bases, so long as there is no double recovery of tax.

In October 2012, the IRD also issued protective profits
tax assessments for profits tax or additional profits tax
for HKD124.5 million in aggregate to the wholly-owned
subsidiaries relating to the year of assessment from 2006/07
to 2009/10 on three alternative bases on same set of
profits for each year of assessment. The Group had lodged
objections against the IRD regarding these protective profits
tax assessments. The IRD agreed to holdover the additional
tax claimed subject to the Group’s purchasing tax reserve
certificate amounted to HKD6.9 million which were done by
the Group in January 2013.

Based on the mode of operations and activities of the
subsidiaries and the merit of the Group’s position as assessed
by its tax counsel, the directors are of the opinion that the
group companies concerned are not subject to Hong Kong
profits tax.

Symphony Holdings Limited 2012 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The Group's appeal to the Board of Review is pending. The
eventual outcome of this action which is being handled by
the Group's tax counsel and the financial impact thereof
on the Group, if any, cannot be readily ascertained at this
stage.

The tax status for a subsidiary, Fuging Grand Galatica
Footwear Co. Ltd. (“Fuging Grand Galatica”), of the Group
operating in PRC, is as follows:

o Fuging Grand Galatica enjoyed the preferential tax
rate of 24% for the year ended 31 December 2011.
The tax rates for current year increased up to 25%;

For the other PRC subsidiaries, the applicable tax rate was
25% during the year.

Stateway Vietnam Footwear Co. Ltd (“Stateway Vietnam”)
enjoyed the preferential tax rate of 20% for the years
from 2006 to 2015 and will increase to 25% thereafter.
Furthermore, Stateway Vietnam was entitled to an
exemption from enterprise income tax for two years and a
further tax preferential tax treatment in the form of a 50%
reduction for the following three years in the preferential tax
rate in Vietnam. The first tax exemption period of Stateway
Vietnam commenced in 2009.

Continuance Vietnam Footwear Co. Ltd. (“Continuance
Vietnam”) was entitled to an exemption from enterprise
income tax for two years and a further tax preferential tax
treatment in the form of a 50% reduction for the following
three years in the applicable tax rate in Vietnam. The first
tax exemption period of Continuance Vietnam commenced
in 2011.

For another Vietnam subsidiary, the applicable tax rate was
25% during the year.

7.

RaMBmRME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReaMBRRME

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

OTHERS
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
(loss)/profit before income tax expense per the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as follows:

BiE (%)

Htt
H iy APAREFTEEMBIR - THKER 7
ERIBEIRITREEE -

FEMBIHAIELGS 2ERERPHHR
AR, FEERMT

(Loss)/profit before income tax expense

Tax (credit)/charge calculated at Hong Kong
Profits Tax rate of 16.5%

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purposes

Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax
purposes

Tax effect of share of results of jointly
controlled entities

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Provision of LAT for the year

Tax effect on EIT of LAT payable

Effect of tax exemptions granted to certain
subsidiaries

Income tax on concessionary rate

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

Deferred taxation on withholding tax arising
on undistributed profits in PRC subsidiaries

Underprovision in respect of prior years

Income tax expense

2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
FRT FHEIT
(Restated)
(B&%))
R AT (E51R), 5 F (202,976) 57,508
REBFSB(GT A,/ HBk
FE16.5%1E (33,491) 9,489
TEIRFIEHAE 2
D% 9,853 7,801
MIARBIBAZ
g2 (14,175) (18,126)
IEHRIEHEEEE Y
D% 9,780 3,495
RERBBEB MG E 51,470 25,221
B ER A 9,667 =
FEAS G (ER 2 (D3
FTSMBiBE (2,417) -
BFETWBARZ
e e (835) (3,068)
BEBETHAESR - (53)
PR R [ A Y
MB AR TRBIERZ & (13,377) (5,245)
REINTE R AR D BLBFIFT
EEMTEMBIEERE (1,467) 907
BIEFETREE 6,362 1,231
RNEEFIE 21,370 21,652

In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, deferred
tax relating to the revaluation of the Group’s properties has
been charged or credited directly to other comprehensive
income (Note 22).
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8.

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

(Loss)/profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

8. FE(&H) HA

Directors’ emoluments (Note 9a) EEWS (i19)
Other staff costs HihfE 8 A
Retirement benefits schemes contributions, RBRIFTEIGER -
excluding directors TEEES
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEIEN S
Allowance for inventories, net FEHBIEFE
(included in cost of sales) (BIEEHENRR)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments B HERIBRH
Cost of inventories recognised as expense RERZFERA
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #1% - B N RIENTE
Exchange losses, net b N EF R
Research and development costs i 5E R B R AR
(included in administrative expenses) (BREETRAX)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Write off of property, plant and equipment
Provision of allowance for bad and
doubtful debts
Provision for financial guarantee contracts
Severance and termination costs
(included in other expenses)

and after crediting:

Exchange gains, net

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments

Government grant

Reversal of allowance for bad and
doubtful debts

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments

Gross rental income for investment properties

Less: direct operating expenses from investment

HEME - BERREEE

RIEIREE

B RRA R

ERE (R OAERBLH)

REHA :

B e

HEME - BEREHER
BRE A

BR#SS

REHEE

T SR A s

REMEESWALRE

B EEESRANREYE

properties that generate rental income BELERX
Interest income from: FEMA -
Bank deposits RITFR
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE

Loans to a jointly controlled entity

R T —HREERER

FE(ER), NS HR TISE

2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
THET TETT
8,432 7,692
460,465 483,278
31,605 34,501
500,502 525,471
1,834 1,917
12,507 3,831
1,771 541
1,772,722 2,096,488
43,362 40,597
= 5,203
19,075 25,873
622 1,924
11,218 =
— 3,640

2,300 =
67,715 =
7,203
(298)

6,905

1,033

476

6,469

FUEEARAR 2012 FERE

929



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HaMBEERME
9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 9. EEHEREEHMH
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(A) DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (A) EE=ES
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eleven Bk EM114%(2010: 1MZ)ESR
(2011: eleven) Directors of the Group were as follows: LT -
2012

Chan  Chang  Chen Cheng  Feng  Huang Ho Ho Sze

Chan Ting Tsung  Fang Kar lei  Sheng  Shing Ting Sun Sun,

LuMin ~ Chuen  Yuan Mei  Shing  Ming lan  Chak  Seng LilNan  Tony  Total
BEE REI REN RAZ B30 EEY EBE fARE @R 3R WWE 4%
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Tén Tén Tér THz TEx TEn TEr THz TEn TExn TEn  TéEn

Fees ER
Other emaluments: Hitigs
Salares and other benefits &4 & 77
Bonus (note) i)
Contributions to retiement KB I5HEILEH
benefits schemes
Total emoluments ik

1 00 Symphony Holdings Limited 2012 Annual Report



9.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBRRME
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 9. EEHEREEHFME)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (A) EZHL(E)
2011
Chan  Chang  Chen  Cheng feng  Huang Ho Ho Sze
Chan Ting  Tsung Fang Kar Ll Sheng  Shing Ting Sun Sun,

LuMin ~ Chuen  Yuan Mei  Shing Ming lan  Chak Seng  LilNan Tony  Total
EEE REI FER RAE 93 BEW ERE MWE MR ZBE BNY 4F
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TErL Tén T TEr TEr TEr TEr TEr TEr TR TEn  TiEn

Fees £h 120 - - 120 % 9% % 120 - 9% - 744
Other emoluments; Hife
Salaries and other benefits  £4 R E {787 - 140 149% = = = = - 140 - 1915 5691
Bonus (note) ) - B0 30 - - - = ) - B 1%
Contributions to RiNENETE
retirement benefits it
schemes - 60 - - - - - - 60 - 101 21
Total emoluments bt 120 1,450 1,79 120 % % 96 120 1,350 % 2352 7,692
Note: The bonus is based on the performance of individuals and the Hiat : FEATIZIEIRIA + R 2GR 2 B M K ©
entity.
No Director waived any emoluments and no HZE2012F K20115E12831H IHFE
compensation was paid for loss of office for the year B BEEEREEIEE S ARR
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011. BIgmEZ SEE -
Mr Sze Sun Sun, Tony is also the Chief Executive of MR R TR AN EEITHRA
the Company and his emolument disclosed above 8 LB EETHNEREI(ERAEE
include those of services rendered by him as the Chief T B PR R TG B0 e B
Executive.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReaMBRRME

9. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(B) EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the five
highest paid individuals of the Group included three
(2011: two) directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in (A) above. The emoluments of the remaining two
(2011: three) individuals are as follows:

ESHRSRESHME)

(B) {EEZrM
HZE2012F12A318IEFE - AR
AlEmEMASEAT - BIE3RES
(20114 : 2%) - EFEMFMER &
X(A)VHEE - HEr24& (20114 : 34)
ATEHBAT -

2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
TET TR

Salaries and other benefits e REMmER
Retirement benefits schemes contributions  R(RIEFIEF EI4E 2R

3,800 4,924
86 152

3,886 5,076

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HEMFHME TINRER

2012 2011

No. of No. of

employees employees

EEAY EEAH

HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000 1,000,001 721,500,000 7T -
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 3

The emoluments paid or payable to members of non-
director senior management were within the following

ENRENEERFFEFTSMEEA
BOHMIETIISER

bands:
2012 2011
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAE EEAE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 07T % 1,000,000/ 7T
HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000 1,000,001 721,500,000 7T
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 7 £2,000,000% 7T

1 02 Symphony Holdings Limited 2012 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAMBGERME

10. DIVIDENDS 10. RE
2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
THERT FT
201 1final dividend of HKDO0.01 BIRf2011 FEAARRR S
(2011: 2010 final dividend of HKD0.015) FEBA%0.01%ET(2011 -
per ordinary share paid 201083K P £.0.01587T) 39,241
No interim dividend was declared and paid in 2011 and 2011 4F R 2012 F 9 1B 5 ROk 1+ A AR AR
2012. For the year ended 31 December 2012, the board B HZE2012F12A8318ILFE  EFH
did not recommend a final dividend (2011: HKDO0.01 per MRS AR E (2011 © AR E F/%0.01
ordinary share and amounting to HKD13,080,000). EIT + 48%0513,080,000/7T) °
11. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 1. SR(ER) &F
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/ earnings per RKRARBEBEAEBEERERNREE(HB
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based 1B),/ B TR TR E -
on the following data:
BASIC (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE BREX(FHR) BT
2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET FHT
(Restated)
(BE5)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to KAEHEB ANELFE
the owners of the Company (HKD) (B518), % (HET) (214,346) 23,811
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FeMBmRME
11. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 1. BRUSER) BRI (&)
(CONTINUED)
BASIC (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) BREKR(EER) BR(E)
2012 2011
Number Number
of shares of shares
(‘000) ("000)
BAEAE Mgk B
(Restated)
(2&75))
Weighted average number of ordinary BUSTEGRER
shares for the purpose of basic (E518) /BFIE
(loss)/earnings per share T RAR R 8L 1,308,034 1,104,516
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share SRR S
(HK cents) (&518) /&FI(BIL) 2.16
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the HMNTE201145F6 AEITARBEEHITRD &
purpose of basic earnings per share in 2011 has been TE20114F7 RETIRID G OHABIRRR D - &
adjusted retrospectively for the issue of shares by way of BHIE24 - BRONMFHEUFTESRERE
an open offer in June 2011 and the reduction of shares FE B INE B B AR -
through share consolidation in July 2011 as set out in Note
24.
DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE SREBE(ER) BT
The amount of diluted (loss)/earnings per share is the same REZE2012F K201 F12A31BILEFE
as basic (loss)/earnings per share as there were no dilutive A BARTEEEBELT B WEk
potential ordinary shares in existence during the years ended e (BB BNEgRER(EER) BT
31 December 2012 and 2011. I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GAMBEEME
12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. V¥ > BENRE
Leasehold
Freehold  land and Furniture,
landin  building in Leasehold fixtures
Taiwan Hong Kong improve- and
RAEH  REEN ments Plantand equipment  Motor
XA%E HETHR  Buildings  EEHE machinery HE-KE  vehicles Total
1 B¥ g% 6 BREREE e RE a5
HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
Group 158 FiEn TR Tin Tir FiEn TiEn Tin TR
COST OR VALUATION HASHE
At 1 January 2011 R011E1A18 7,050 112,215 92,455 78,559 252,735 34,107 12,503 589,624
Exchange realignment EXE (278) - 3,966 3,002 9,013 854 331 16,948
Additions AE = = - 13,384 13,840 1,911 1,545 30,680
Surplus arising on revaluation EffEEHER - 7013 20,268 - - - - 27,281
Disposals e = - - (386) (5,278) (290) - (5,954)
At 31 December 2011 H01E128318 6772 119208 116689 94619 270310 3658 14379 658579
Exchange realignment E L ES 286 - 1,051 739 1,564 283 180 4,103
Additions AE - - 20,544 49,885 6,117 4,566 1147 82,259
Transferred from investment properties  # Gk &M% - - 2731% - 358 (358) - 27319
Surplusi(deficit) arising on revaluation ~ EftEAEIRS /(5E) /14027 (86) = = - - U3
Write off e - - - (20272)  (23,084) (4,664) (926)  (48,946)
Disposals e - - (14868 (9,069) (7.932) (3211) 2,174 (137.254)
At 31 December 2012 R012E12A318 7444 133255 296525 115902 247333 33,198 12,606 846,263
Comprising: g
At cost iy = = - 115902 247333 33,198 12606 409,039
At valuation - 2012 1EE-2012 7444 133,255 296,525 - - - - 437224
7444 133255 296,525 115902 247333 33,198 12606 846,263
DEPRECIATION HEEEE
At 1 January 2011 0111518 - - - 61,323 163,782 23,695 9721 258527
Exchange realignment ERE = = - 2,380 5,509 565 265 8,719
Provided for the year FREE - 3,096 4767 10,003 18173 3,622 936 40,597
Write back on revaluation SEEEE = (309)  (4767) - - - = (7.863)
Eliminated on disposal HERHEH = - - (386) (3.232) (226) = (3,844)
At 31 December 2011 RO011E128318 - - - BN 1832 066 1098 29,136
Exchange realignment ERE] = = 116 563 1133 183 132 2121
Provided for the year FREE - 3,256 11,286 10,059 15,003 2,738 1,020 43,362
Reclassification EFiE = - - - 120 (120) = =
Write back on revaluation SRR - (3.25)  (1341) - - - - (4,597)
Write off s = = - (16,804)  (15992) (4,125) 807) (37,728
Eliminated on disposal (HEREH = - (10061 (599N @74h (78 (19100 (24420)
At31 December 2012 H012E028318 - - - GLMT 19T 4618 9363 274880
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2012 R2012512831R 7444 133255 296,525 54,755 67,581 8,580 323 571,383
At 31 December 2011 R011E12A318 6,772 119,228 116,689 21,299 86,078 8,926 3,451 362,443
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EaMBERRME

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group had
made a strategic decision to relocate the manufacturing
facilities to Vietnam and other province of the PRC which
led to the write off of property, plant and equipment with a
carrying amount of HKD11,218,000.

The buildings of the Group located in the PRC and the
leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong were fair valued
on 31 December 2012 by Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong)
Limited, an independent firm of professional property
valuers, Chartered Surveyors. The freehold land and
buildings of the Group located in Taiwan were fair valued
as of the same date by Chia-Tai Real Estate Appraises, an
independent firm of property valuers, Chartered Surveyors.
Prudential and Chia-Tai Real Estate Appraises are not
connected with the Group.

The valuations of freehold land in Taiwan, leasehold land
and buildings in Hong Kong and buildings in Taiwan and the
PRC adopted a direct comparison approach with reference
to market comparable sales evidence available in the market
and where appropriate on the depreciated replacement cost
approach in the absence of comparable sales evidence.

Had the land and buildings not been revalued, they
would have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation in
the amount of HKD333,053,000 (2011: HKD104,936,000).

The Group had pledged leasehold land and buildings with a
carrying value of HKD 133,255,000 (2011: HKD119,228,000)
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
of which HKD120,000,000 had been utilised at end of the
reporting period (2011: HKD120,000,000).
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/$133,255,000875(2011 : 119,228,000/5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAMBERME

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

12. W% - BER&EE)

The Group'’s leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong and
buildings in the PRC are analysed at their carrying values as
follows:

AEEMEE L MEFTRER R EMK
HESE :

2011
HKD'000
FA&T
Properties located in Hong Kong REEH
Medium-term lease FHAHE i 119,228
Properties located in PRC R
Medium-term lease REAFEE i 113,933
13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REW=
Investment
properties Completed
under investment
construction properties
BE P 2EK Total
REME REWF HEE
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Group TEH FET FAET FET
FAIR VALUE ATEE
At 1 January 2011 K201 1 818 255,189 257,773 512,962
Additions NE 339,706 - 339,706
Disposals k= - (16,880) (16,880)
Increase in fair value recognised RIBERERR
in profit or loss NFEEN 65,025 10,170 75,195
Exchange realignment ==l 11,642 807 12,449
At 31 December 2011 2011412 H31H 671,562 251,870 923,432
Additions NE 122,113 - 122,113
Disposals HeE - (5,000) (5,000)
Transferred to property, EEYE - BE
plant and equipments and K&
prepaid lease payments (573,184) - (573,184)
Increase in fair value recognised RIBRERH
in profit or loss NFEEEN = 33,843 33,843
Exchange realignment ENEY 5,511 165 5,676
At 31 December 2012 R2012412A318 226,002 280,878 506,880
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReaMBRRME

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

13. REWXE(E)

Notes: Bt

(@) All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land and buildings held under (a) FEFZAE ETHE (EH 2 WA B E A IS (B i 0
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes BT RIEFHIHEE R  TIALTFEER
are measured using the fair value model and are classified and FrE - WA IERUAIREYZENA SR -
accounted for as investment properties.

(b) The fair value of the Group'’s investment properties at 31 December (b))  R2012FR2011F12H31H » RNEEKEYZE
2012 and 2011 were arrived at on the basis of valuations carried B FIEE I R T T E G & A B e
out on that date by Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited. The £ WHEGERE TSEL Y E A& E
valuations of investment properties were arrived with reference to MET -
market comparable sales evidences available in the market.

(© As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, a large portion of the completed () R2012F R20114F12H31H » KgnE 2Kk
investment properties were rented out under operating leases. Details BEYECHAEHEAT - MEHE LT HFHBE
of operating lease arrangements are set out in Note 29. RN 529

(d) The construction of the Outlet Mall over two parcels of land in (@) LI R G [ (B 2 P2 5 fE (B R R 0 B9 7]
Shenyang which was in an initial stage of development last year was HRIEEERRFERTT o RITH R - a5
completed during the year. On completion, the cost of construction MK AR BREE A #£573,184,000/8 T 45 # #2
and carrying value of the two parcels of land with an aggregate BYEBEBEZYE BERRERENHEEN
amount of HKD573,184,000 were transferred from investment IB - SRS R ERB YR O E S 25 B BT
properties to property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease S RATEEE -
payments as the Outlet Mall business is in the nature of owner-
occupation and operation for accounting purpose.

(e)  Asat 31 December 2012, the Group had pledged certain completed ()  R2012F12H31H  FEFHDHHFETEEX
investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of REYZENIERIR T A EE ) —RIRTTISEFH
HKD226, 745,000 (2011: HKD200,772,000) to secure general banking B ZERE YR IRFIEA #/5226,745,000
facilities granted to the Group of which HKD120,000,000 had been JEIL(2011 © 200,772,000/7T) * RIFEAIA -
utilised at end of the reporting period (2011: HKD120,000,000). 120,000,000/ 7T #91= B Gh 18 E 1 E)/H (2011 -

120,000,000/ 7T) °

16} The analysis of the carrying amount of investment properties is as f) REYZE B EEE -
follows:

2011
HKD'000
FAT

Completed properties in Hong Kong: EREEEKYE
Long lease REFHE 7,500
Medium-term lease PEIHE 224,272

Properties outside Hong Kong: BBAIMNIE -
Completed properties at medium-term lease EERYEFHEE 20,098
Properties under construction at medium-term lease SRy ¥R BHEE 671,562
923,432
(@  The Group has not yet obtained formal titles to the interests of three (9 AEEEAER T =B IFEE B

parcels of land, including a parcel of land transferred to prepaid
lease payment, (2011: three) with an aggregate carrying amount of
HKD 247,241,000 (2011: HKD245,230,000). In the opinion of the
directors, the absence of formal titles of these land interest has not
impaired their value to the Group as the Group had paid the full
purchase consideration of the local land bureau and will promptly
apply for the registration of formal title once the Group has fulfilled
the relevant conditions. The directors regard the probability of being
deprived from the use of the land on the ground of lack of formal
titles is remote.
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14. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

14. EHERE

AEERENHAEFARE

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: REABAINOFAE - Hb
Held under medium-term lease REAFRE

Analysed for reporting purposes as: ADIFET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current assets MENEE

ENTITIES

15. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 15. #[F
ENTITIES/ADVANCES TO JOINTLY &
CONTROLLED ENTITIES/AMOUNTS
DUE FROM/TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED

2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
FEx TET

298,757 19,923

291,363 19,382
7,394 541

298,757 19,923

BHERER ERTHE
B REW RN RES

Interests in jointly controlled entities:

Cost of unlisted investments in
jointly controlled entities (note i)
Share of post-acquisition net losses and
other comprehensive income,
net of dividends received

HEEHIE S

RIRZEHIE R
FEETIRE MR A (AL
HRBREBEFER
Hitra WA
(REFEWAE)

Advances to jointly controlled entities:

Non-current advance to a
jointly controlled entity (note ii)

ERT RS ERE

FRBERT
—HEEHIE B (ALl

Shareholder’s loan to a jointly controlled entity A% 5 & 7k F— t [Fl5 6 &

(note iif)

(Hiatii)

Group

AEE
2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD’000
THERT FHT

280,459 298,718

(279,217) (256,335)
1,242 42,383
108,348 108,451
62,937
108,348 171,388
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FeMBERERE

15. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 15. HEEFHEEER ERTHE
ENTITIES/ADVANCES TO JOINTLY REIERE W EN RS
CONTROLLED ENTITIES/AMOUNTS EfE(E)
DUE FROM/TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group had interests in M2011F %2012 128318 - AEEIFAE
the following principal jointly controlled entities: AT HEESI B e

Proportion of

nominal value
Form of of issued capital
business Place of Class of held by the Group
Jointly controlled entity structure incorporation share AEEHEH Principal activities
LEEHER FE-E Y i 2 R4 &R BRTRAAERDL TEED
2011
Smart Shine Industries Limited ~ Incorporated British Virgin - Ordinary 50% Investment holding
e Islands Lk REER
EBRRHE
Grand Wealth Group Limited Incorporated British Virgin - Ordinary 50% Investment holding,
("Grand Wealth") P Islands LR men's apparel marketing
KBELES  Preferred 18% and trading
(note iv) BRBER K
BRRH ) BrRESHEES
China Ocean Resources Limited  Incorporated British Virgin - Ordinary 50% Investment holding,
("China Ocean") P Islands LR trademark rights licensing
EBRERHES and footwear trading
JFT Holdings Limited Incorporated Hong Kong  Ordinary 50% Investment holding
BERERERERAT % 0 TER and retailing of apparel,
footwear and accessories
RABRRERS  HER
i T &
Welcome Wealth Properties Incorporated British Virgin -~ Ordinary 50% Investment holding and
Limited (“Welcome Wealth”) 1% Islands pt]i footwear trading
EBRRHE REZRRERES
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15.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES/ADVANCES TO JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES/AMOUNTS
DUE FROM/TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

i During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group made additional

capital contribution of HKD66,045,000 to Welcome Wealth.

ii. The advance to China Ocean is unsecured, interest-free and has no
fixed term of repayment. The Group has no intention to exercise its
right to demand repayment of the advance within the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. The Directors believe
the settlement of the advance is not likely to occur in the foreseeable
future and regard the advance, in substance, as part of the Group’s
net investment in China Ocean. Accordingly, the amount is classified as

a non-current asset.

fii. The shareholder’s loan to Grand Wealth is unsecured and interest-
bearing at aggressive rates up to maturity which ranged from 7% to
11% (2011: 7% to 11%) per annum, and denominated in USD. The

maturity date of the shareholder’s loan is 30 June 2016.

iv. The preferred shares shall have the same rights and privileges to

income as the ordinary shares in the proportion of 99:1.

The amounts due from/to jointly controlled entities are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

As disclosed in Note 33, the Group was committed to
dispose of its entire interest in Grand Wealth. Accordingly,
the interest of HKD120,383,000 made up of shareholder’s
loan and advance to Grand Wealth and the Group’s share
of its net assets, net of impairment loss, as at 31 December

2012 was reclassified as assets held for sales.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

HEZHERES /E/TA
HIERE R R H %J

-fe
I
B2 (|

Hiat

i HE2012F 1231 HIFFE - FEFEI R
& 66,045,000 T 1E /3 IR A [ & T Welcome
Wealth °

i £ [F] 57 {1 T China Ocean i) 58 5 24 5 I # 1
o KNFNE RAEBLE B FH o I AFRER K
BRI+ AR - FEEEESH ﬁfgﬁg/fw

REIFEHERIEEZSN - EFIHE - ZEHT
A}J‘AEV,%#%KEM HEE FEAE @}J%Ch/na
Oceanfy &S (7 1R ESFEE « U » ZBAW S5
FETBEE °

jii. # T Grand Weath#y/ig B E KA ER K 1 H F
B FFEZT%E11% (2011 - 7% E11%)iE
EEEHH - WX ETEE - REEXAZEA
A20165F6/30H It TBEREEHE #AAE 4 A
BHEEE - B33 -

iv. ESLRAIZ9 < 1471 DI IR BB A S R A4
ABFIRIFHE

J@H&/}%H £ R 4% il aﬁaﬁ’w’( AR
;2R WEARERERFEE

BB FE33FT B ZIKEIE%?*&E&
& F Grand Wealth®) 2 20 R% 15 - #E Mm% s%
%@&ﬁ120,383,0007%75%%1ﬂ1/\§ﬁ%§
E o EPEER2012F12A31ANBRRE
X~ E A ¥ Grand Wealth 8978 St sUR AR &£
B{EeEHNRRESERRNFEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAMBBRRME
15. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 15. HEZHERER BERTFHE
ENTITIES/ADVANCES TO JOINTLY o | 2 al & + [5] 50 &
CONTROLLED ENTITIES/AMOUNTS E@EE/EEL&/EEﬁAHE%J
DUE FROM/TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED 2R (@)
ENTITIES (CONTINUED)
The summarised financial information in respect of the REBR RS T E(GESAEZS
Group's attributable interests in jointly controlled entities SEANE B E R
which are accounted for using the equity method is set out
below:
2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
THERT FAT
Non-current assets FERBEE 129,929 227,677
Current assets mENEE 100,941 165,032
Current liabilities mENEE (121,277) (117,807)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (108,351) (232,519)
Net assets EEE 1,242 42,383
Income recognised in profit or loss RIEEP R AU A 150,335 184,114
Expenses recognised in profit or loss RIEEPHERANAY (212,883) (208,365)
Loss before income tax expense AR (62,548) (24,251)
Income tax credit HIEE R 3,274 3,067
Loss for the year FERBE (59,274) (21,184)
16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 16. AIHEHERE
Group
rEE
2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
TERT FHET
Listed investments: EHRE
— Debentures listed outside Hong Kong —BFBEAIMNEE FTEES
ranging from 7.200% to 8.175% per BB EE S %7.200%
annum and have no fixed maturity date £8.175%  EETE R A 5,665
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, all listed investments A2012% K%2011412 8318 » FrE L&
were stated at fair value. Fair values were determined by BHARNTEBEZY - A EBEIZ2ER
reference to market bid prices quoted in relevant stock XS ERBERNESE -
exchanges.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GAMBEEME
17. INVENTORIES 17. B8
Group
TEE
2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD’000
FH&xT FET
Raw materials R 67,283 113,687
Work in progress EER 47,860 64,259

Finished goods BIRK Th 139,068 168,082

254,211 346,028

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 18. ESZ R HEMEWRZR KT £
DEPOSIT PAID

Group Company
TEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FHERT FET FHERT THT

Trade receivables B SR 250,423 336,965 -
Less: allowance for doubtful B RIREE

debts (6,730) (8,610)

243,693 328,355
Other receivables, deposits and ~ Hfh fEUER « 518 &
prepayments SEINE e 84,532 88,177

Trade and other receivables — B 5 R E A0 EWER
current 328,225 416,532
Deposit paid for acquisition BE—IREME
for an investment property FET& (H72)
(note) 150,288 44,390 -
Total trade and other receivables & 5 JE 48R 478,513 460,922
Note: The amounts represented deposits paid to Shenyang Plan and Land Wit - ZEAHEIEENT T & 1R 2B+ &R GHET
Resources Bureau for acquisition of a land use right of a parcel of land 2 LIRBEEFER — R EVEG A1 -
located in Shenyang, the PRC. KEBFE LT ERIFZM S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RaMBRRME

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSIT PAID (CONTINUED)

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from
60 to 90 days to its trade customers. Included in trade
and other receivables are trade and bills receivables, net of
allowance for doubtful debts, of HKD243,693,000 (2011:
HKD328,355,000). The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

18.

B R EMBRRRR R < (E)

AEEREESEPIEM R E60H £90
ATREMTHEER B REMERK
BF 7B ¥E /& 81243,693,000 7 7T (2011 -
328,355,000/ 7T ) B E 5) K FE Y Z 55 (H1FR
RIEBE) - RAWRSHAR  LBEERABA
A - B HRBERFINBR RRBENRE
ST

0 to 30 days 0E30K
31 to 60 days 31260X
61 to 90 days 61290
Over 90 days #90K

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and grants a credit limit
to the customer. Limits and score attributed to customers
are reviewed twice a year. Approximately 94% (2011:
83%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired have no default payment history. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

AGEING OF TRADE RECEIVABLES WHICH ARE
PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

Group

REH
2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
THET TET
137,593 240,509
65,264 14,511
25,202 16,772
15,634 56,563
243,693 328,355

REMTBEER  AEESRM—B

VEESBEARUGEZERRHESE
B UYEETZEFPHNEERSE -TPHE
BRERSBEBFHEIT2NRT - KE94%
(2011 : 83%) 3Em HASK R (E &) E 5 FE W AR

AR A AL R o EER B A&
ﬁé%ﬂ%{’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

m

3 43R B RO L A B 5 FE W AR RR Y AR R

Over 90 days 190K

2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
FERT TAT
15,634 56,563
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19.

20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
DEPOSIT PAID (CONTINUED)

AGEING OF TRADE RECEIVABLES WHICH ARE
PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED (CONTINUED)

18.

REMBRRME

BEZRHMBWRR KR & (&)

I 455818 BV S 28 B 3 B KUBR K Y R R
(%)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIEERECEF
Group
AEE
2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD’'000
TERT FHET
Balance at beginning of the year FEERR 8,610 4,970
Impairment losses recognised on receivables 2R EEEE R RIERE 630 3,730
Impairment losses reversed VERIE =TI (2,510) (90)

6,730 8,610

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

Loss attributable to owners of the Company includes an
amount of HKD10,565,000 (2011: HKD4,926,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT, PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

(A) RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT
The balance is dominated in RMB and carries a
fixed interest at 3.3% per annum. The use of the
bank deposit requires the consent from one of the
occupants of the Group’s outlet mall in the PRC.

(B) PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT
As at 31 December 2012, RMB63,000,000
(approximately HKD78,319,000) (2011: Nil) was
pledged to a bank for securing banking facilities
granted to the Group. The deposit carries interest at
prevailing market rate at around 3.3% per annum for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

19.

20.

RRATRFEEABEEQAGE

KARBEBEARBGARREBERESSE
10,565,000 /& 7T (2011 % : 4,926,000 &
J0)  EERAR RN HEHRER AR

SREBTESR  CEARGE
HURBITEBRRS

(A) ERHEITERK
RIEHRAARETHE - BFEFHNEX
3.3% ° BARITHERAAKER T
B2 EBYT OEP—REEA
RIETAMEE °

(B) CEMRITHER
72012412 A31H » 63,000,000 A
R#(4778,319,000/87T) (2011 : &)
BT —HERITERAEEE LR
TRLA o ZIF NN B E 2012128
BNTHIEFEERMIGFNERLI 3%

B o

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

20. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT, PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES

AND CASH (CONTINUED)

(©) BANK BALANCES AND CASH

20. SREBTER - DEMRTE
FURBITEBRES ()

(O RITHEBRRES

It included the time deposits of HK$113,112,000
(2011: HK$75,931,000) which carried fixed interest
rates ranging from 0.5% to 2.2% (2011: 0.01%
to 1.26%) per annum. The remaining balance
represented bank balances and carried interest at
prevailing market rates which ranged from 0.01% to
0.40% (2011: 0.01% to 0.50%) per annum during
the year.

As at 31 December 2012, cash and bank balances
(including pledged bank deposits and restricted
bank deposit) denominated in RMB amounted to
approximately HKD317,951,000 (2011: approximately
HKD77,223,000). RMB is not freely convertible into
foreign currencies in the PRC. Under the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for foreign currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

RITHEMBRIRSBIEETEFFZE0.5%
£22%(2011 : 0.01% £ 1.26% ) &)
TE Hi7F 7 113,100,000 7T (2011 -
75,931,000 70) ° 2 NEEBRIEF A
EMEFFER0.01%ZE0.40% (2011 :
0.01%%0.50% )5 EMRTTAE SR ©

R2012F12 A318 » UAREHER
Re RFITEK(BRIEEERRITER
K2R EIRITF ) #317,951,00078
JL(2011 = 977,223,000 7T) - AR
AR BTN RE B R ERINE - RIES
B HINGE B 2R AR A7) D e K 5B ~ B 0B R f<F
EEEATE)  AEERTRRERE
I INE ZETFRIRTT - ISARBH R
BN o

21. B R EMBEN R

Trade and bills payables B SEMAER
Other payables, temporary HA AR - BRiy
receipts and accruals WK B FE ST AR X

Total trade and other payables & 5 & H fth f& <t

AR AERR

Symphony Holdings Limited 2012 Annual Report

Group Company
REH ARF

2011 2012 2011
HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
TETT FHERT TATT

228,416

255,991

484,407



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmRME
21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. ESZREAMENSRR(E)
(CONTINUED)
The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables RAREER  KEZAPAER - E5H
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the FERERFABRER DTN T

reporting period:

2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD’'000
THERT FHT
0 to 30 days 0ZE30K 83,004 116,673
31 to 60 days 31260k 61,515 58,924
61 to 90 days 61Z290K 17,632 18,683
Over 90 days 90K 39,369 34,136
201,520 228,416
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. BEMTHEERAIOX  AEELEHIE
The Group has financial risk management policies in place Hﬁ%ﬂﬁ’*”ﬁﬂz%ﬁb{ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂi@
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit PNEEHR AL
timeframe.
22. DEFERRED TAXATION 22, EZERIE
The following table is the analysis of the deferred tax EUAMBRERERETIBL SRS T
balances for financial reporting purposes: T&:
Group
AEME
2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
THERT FET
(Restated)
(BE5)
Deferred tax assets BRI IEE E ((EXLy)) (13,132)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEREAE 74,257 86,201
55,800 73,069
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ReaMBRRME

22. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The following table shows the major deferred tax liabilities/
(assets) recognised by the Group and movements thereon
during the current and prior years:

22,

EAEDTE ()

AEECHANIBZELCHRERE (B
E) RESHNAFERBEFENEHE
IR -

Revaluation of
freehold and
leasehold Undistributed
land and earningsof  Unrealised
buildings  Revaluation  Accelerated of PRC profiton  Allowance
XAZEH  of investment tax  subsidiaries inventories forbad and Tax
AELHE  properties  depreciation  FEINEAF FEB  doubtful debts losses Total
BFERE RENXER NBRERE  AVREA FREN  RERER Hagk 2]
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FER FAL AL FEL FhR FAL AL T
At1 January 2011, s restated RO1E1R1B(BES) 20803 31,547 4754 3819 (232 (24) (12,010) 48657
Chargeflcredit) to profit or loss MRGA) B - 18,334 (151) 907 90 63) (8%3) 16,864
Charge to equity TERA 7,548 - - - - - - 7,548
At 31 December 2011, as estated A2011E12831B(RES) 831 49881 3283 476 (182 3] (12903 73069
Exchange differences ERER - 18 - - - - - 18
Chargeflcredit) to profit or loss MAGA) B4 - 751 (2,161) (1.467) % (104) (5,245) (8,202)
Charge to equity AR 2469 - - - - - - 2469
Released upon disposal SRitE (11,554) - - - - - - (11,554)
Reclassification EHRE 42,700 42,700) - - - - - _
At 31 December 2012 R20124128318 61,966 7,950 1,082 3259 (118) (191) (18,148) 55,800

At 31 December 2012, the Group had unused tax losses
of HKD577,539,000 (2011: HKD345,741,000) available
to offset against future profits. Tax losses to the extent
of HKD109,994,000 (2011: HKD78,205,000) have been
recognised as a deferred tax asset. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining unused tax
losses of HKD467,545,000 (2011: HKD267,536,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All the tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely except for those
arising from the PRC which may be carried forward for five
years.

The Company did not have any deferred tax assets or
liabilities as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

Symphony Holdings Limited 2012 Annual Report

R2012F 128318 "EBEXRHH
i 18 &5 18 #9 577,539,000 % 7T (2011
345,741,000 7% 7T ) A K 85 R 2K 0m A o
AN ERMZEEERRAREHIEEELN
109,994,000 7 st (2011 : 78,205,000 7
JL) c BRI TEEIAR R A FBE - Wi
BLFI SRR B A BB B8 4467,545,00078 7T
(2011 : 267,536,000/ 7T ) HERIE LR IBE
E-FANEBEERPLE  HkE
FR B0 Pl 4588 R OB BB B RIRR SN ©

A2012% K20114E12 8318 » AEERE
EEREFRIEE EEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBERERME
23. BANK BORROWINGS 23. RITER
Group Company
KEE EON

Carrying amount of variable BN —FNEERN
interest-rate bank loans SFENF A
repayable within one year RITEFAREE

Carrying amount of variable BAERBARER
interest-rate bank loans —FRERZH

that are not repayable
within one year from the end

MEWREEER
BB IRV IRAT
of the reporting period which %8R A
contain a repayable

on demand clause-secured

SHERBBESTE

Amounts shown under
current liabilities

The Group has variable interest rate bank loans which carry
interest ranging from 1.50% to 3.05% (2011: Hong Kong
Interbanks Offered Rate plus 1.1% to 1.25%). The effective
interest rate of the Group’s bank loans is 1.88% (2011:
1.52%).

Bank loans with a carrying amount of HK$120,000,000
(2011: HKD120,000,000) are secured by certain land and
buildings and investment properties of the Group as set out
in Note 12 and 13 respectively.

2012
HKD’000
TET

317,426

120,000

437,426

2011
HKD'000
TAT

2012
HKD’000
FEx

20M
HKD’000
TAT

310,064

120,000 310,064

REZE2011F K2012F12A31HILFE
N AEBRTERWNEZFSHEEX
METFEFRITRAERFEFEIN1.50% %
3.05% (2011 : HBRITRZEREFEM
11%E1.25%) « NEERITER 2B BH)
R 51.88% (2011 1 1.52%) °

iR 17 & 3 120,000,000 # 7T ( 2011
120,000,000/ 70 ) A AN EHH T L &
BRI EYEIEER (DB R WE12 R
13) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FeMBmRME
24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. BB
Number of
shares  Nominal value
RDEE H{E
('000) HKD'000
(FAR) FET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each SR EEO. 1078 T4 2K
(2011: HKDO.10 each) (20114 - GIREED. 10E
)
At 1 January 2011 PB2011F1A1B R 8,000,000 2,000,000
Share consolidation (note (i) BRAR & BrCHT 7)) (4,000,000 =
Sub-division of share capital (note (iv)) R AIFR AR (152 (iv) 16,000,000 -
At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012 M2011E12A318 %
2012412 A31H 20,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREAR -
Ordinary shares of HKDO. 10 each BRIEEO. 10,5 H) HiB AR
(2011: HKDO.10 each) (20114 - L2ARET(E0. 10/
)
At 1 January 2011 M2011F1A18H 1,744,045 436,011
Issue of shares through an open offer (note() BRNFREERTRD (A720) 872,022 218,006
2,616,067 654,017
Share consolidation (note (ii)) Rt &0k Mzt (i) (1,308,033) -
Capital reduction (note (i) HRAR AN (H i) - (523,213)
At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012 M2011F12H31A K&
2012912 A31H 1,308,034 130,804
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

0]

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

On 7 June 2011, the Company issued and allotted 872,022,386
new ordinary shares of HKD0.25 each at par to the qualifying
shareholders whose name appeared on the register of members
of the Company on 11 May 2011 through an open offer. The net
proceeds, after deducting issuing costs, amounted to approximately
HKD216,103,000. The issuing costs of HKD1,903,000 was debited to
share premium.

An ordinary resolution was passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 25 July 2011 approving the share consolidation on
the basis that every 2 issued and unissued shares of the Company
of HKDO.25 each were consolidated into 1 consolidated share of
the Company of HKDO0.50 each (the “Share Consolidation”) which
became effect on the same date. Following the implementation of
the Share Consolidation, the Company’s authorised share capital of
HKD2,000,000,000 was divided into 4,000,000,000 of HKDO.50
each and its issued share capital remained as approximately
HKD654,017,000 represented by 1,308,034,000 shares of HKDO.50
each.

An special resolution was passed at the same extraordinary general
meeting as disclosed in note (ii) above approving the capital reduction
pursuant to which the par value of each existing share of HKDO.50
each in the issued capital of the Company were reduced by HKDO.40
each (the “Capital Reduction”) which became effect after the approval
on 26 July 2011. Following the implementation of the Capital
Reduction, the Company’s issued was reduced by approximately
HKD523,213,000 to approximately HKD130,804,000 represented by
1,308,034,000 shares of HKDO.10 each.

Another ordinary resolution was passed at the same extraordinary
general meeting as disclosed in note (ii) above approving the sub-
division of the authorised share capital of the Company such that each
share of a nominal value of HKDO.50 became five shares of a nominal
value of HKDO.10 each (the “Sub-Division”) which became effective
on 26 July 2011. Following the implementation of the Sub-Division,
the Company’s authorised share capital of HKD2,000,000,000 was
divided into 20,000,000,000 of HKDO.10 each.

All shares issued by the Company ranked pari passu with the

then existing shares in all respects.

REMBRRME

24. IRA(%%)

Bret -

)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

R2011F6H7H + AL Al#E N FHEE R
201145511 HESIEK R EIRR S METE E15AR
BT RA#872,022,386 8 R E 1H0.258 T
HIFTE AR o ASHIR FTTHATE » TG EFEE
#943216,103,000 T * #1757 1,903,000, T
ERBR7 5 EF I

R20114F7 25 L7 THIRRIFFIA &_FiEE—
FHEBRFER  UMERGE G BEBEE
2RAE L FE FE1TRARFEITEIR0.25 B THIR (7
B OB 1RE L a] IR ETEO.50,5 T 895 HEAR (7
([RGEGE]) - RIEIAER - ZREEETTRE HF
# + KR E]aEE R 7 2,000,000,000/% T 5 7
#44,000,000,000/% &% E 180.50/& T A& 17 -
A B EITRANI 4 A49654,017,00087C * 7
£1,308,034,0004% &7 R ET(E0.50;8 7T A9 (7 ©

REX () A 7R e Al — R R F5 FIA & 2818
— IR S - LA ERRABIE, - B AR
FIE BT B R (H0. 50,8 T B B9 5
R EI50.40/8 T ([FRAHIE ) + HR20114F
7526 AN EE LR - BREETTRAHGHE
KL EIH)E FETTHR A4 8 )57 #9523,2 13,0008 7T
F#7130,804,000;%7T + 5 #31,308,034,000% &
BRETEO. 108 TTHIR 17 °

REX () A 5 7R 1 (Al — IR R FF FIA & 3818
BB ERER - AHEITAA R Bl EER
A L EZIRETIEO 508 TR 172 A5
EIEO. 10;87T ([#740)) - HR20114F7 726 5%
HERAEN - BFEETTIRANE + AR RIAEER
Z2,000,000,000;& 7T J3 53 #320,000,000,000 &7
BRETEO. 108 T AR 17 °

PrBEBARRIETHRMEME S EH R
ERFENRARNZFERFHA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EaMBERRME

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 22 October 2001, shareholders of the Company
approved and adopted a share option scheme (the “2001
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing eligible participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
Company and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
All Directors, full-time employees and any other persons
who, at the sole discretion of the board of directors, had
contributed or would contribute to the Group were eligible
to participate in the 2001 Scheme.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
10 June 2011, shareholders of the Company approved the
termination of the 2001 scheme and adopted a new share
option scheme (the “2011 Scheme™).

Pursuant to the 2001 and the 2011 Schemes, shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options granted or to be
granted under the two schemes or any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of adoption. The Company may renew this 10% limit
with shareholders’ approval provided that each such renewal
may not exceed 10% of shares in the Company in issue as
at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the two schemes or any other
share option scheme adopted by the Company must not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and unexercised options) under the
two schemes or any other share option schemes adopted by
the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The period within which the options must be exercised
will be specified by the Company at the time of grant. This
period must expire no later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the options. At the time of grant of the options,
the Company may specify a minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. The offer of
a grant of share options may be accepted within 14 days
from the date on which the letter containing the offer is
delivered to that participant and the amount payable on
acceptance of an option is HKD1.00.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Exchange
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company
on the date of grant. The subscription price will be approved
by the board of directors at the time the option is offered to
the participants.

No options may be granted under the two schemes after
the date of the tenth anniversary of the adoption of the two
schemes.

On 2 August 2006, the Company granted 166,050,000
share options to eligible participants at an exercise price of
HKD1.032 pursuant to the 2001 Scheme. All of the share
options expired on 31 August 2009.

For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, the
Company had no share option being granted, outstanding,
lapsed or cancelled pursuant to the 2001 Scheme and the
2011 Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EaMBERRME

26. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which include the bank borrowings disclosed in Note 23,
trade and other payables, amounts due to jointly controlled
entities, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and various reserves.

Directors review the capital structure regularly. As part of
this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated the share capital. The Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues as well as
the issue of new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

The net debts-to-equity ratios at 31 December 2012 and
2011 were as follows:

26. E€EMERE

AEEHEREEEANRBNRENEER
RSB S - B A B RRESTEI
RECNEEEELCR - AEBRBRE
ML EFIEES -

AEENBEAEBRRERFE Hbe
ERME23PWBEOERRITER  F
RekReFEYRAREEE AEIERE
& BREBTRAREIARE -

EETHENAREEARE - (FREH
M—8D  EFEEZEERSHEHNER
PR R B o ARG AR A B AT R AR e 3k
THESKERREEY  FTEHHEHEEE
KRB -

2011 %2012F12 A31 B IEFE B
SFEBRITE

Group

TEH
2011
HKD’000
FHET
Trade and other payables 2 5 R EH M ERER 484,407
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities JE A B B R RUR 25,286
Bank borrowings RITER 120,000
629,693
Less: Bank balances and cash W RITEBRERERS (277,715)
Restricted bank deposit ZIR BRI -
Pledged bank deposit BRI TIFR -
Net debts BEFE 351,978
Equity B 1,695,066
Net debts to equity ratio ERERFE 21%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREaMBBERME
27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27. $RTH
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) £mtTEER
Group
rEH

2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
FEx TATT

1,031,407 805,611
2,334 5,665

Financial assets SREE

Loans and receivables ERRERESR(BIERITRE
(including bank balances and cash) #RIRE)

Available-for-sale financial assets At ESmEE

Financial liabilities -y =N

Amortised cost iz ]pRN

873,872 525,675

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, advances to/amounts
due from/to jointly controlled entities, trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables and bank borrowings. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include currency risk, interest
rate risk, other price risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(B) EREREERRREE

AEENTESRTABREAIHIHEE
RE - ERBBRT  RERER B
WEEMNHKFREHEERE BH5K
HibRUSRR - BEEERE - )T
BHMRE  BHREMEMNERRK
BEERIBITER - A LRI AN
IREN AR A - EtF SR T AN
RHERBEEERR - FRER R
HipEREE  FERBEABES
R - I E R BB EHIR
X - BEBEBEELERILFR
B R REABRIVEE B
It °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RaMBEERME

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

(ii)

27. TR T A (&)

Currency Risk () EB¥EE
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign REBMETHBARNEE
currency sales and purchases, which expose the NEBETININELEE  SKE
Group to foreign currency risk. B INE RS o
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying MARREIRR - NEBE B
amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and SEEBNIEEKUIINE
monetary liabilities that were denominated in BANET) HENAEFRER
a currency (i.e. HKD) other than the functional BENEEGENEDEDNT -
currency of the relevant group entities were as
follows:
Liabilities Assets
affE BE
2011 2011
HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FET
HKD BT 26,884 12,530
Sensitivity Analysis BREDN
The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation RNEBMEBAZERL/ BLE
in USD/HKD exchange rate. However, the ERBERR o Al - BRETT
foreign currency risk is not significant as HKD is IRZETHNE - BHNE RS I T
pegged to USD. #E o
Interest Rate Risk (i) FIEmE

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and
loan to a jointly controlled entity. The directors
consider the Group’s exposure to fair value
interest rate risk is not significant as interest
bearing bank deposits are within short maturity
periods.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank deposits
and bank borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to
keep its deposits at floating rate of interest so as
to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Interest Rate Risk (Continued)

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s
USD denominated bank deposits and HKD and
USD denominated bank loans.

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for both derivative and non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming these financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on bank deposits had been 50
basis points (2011: 50 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's loss for the year ended 31 December
2012 would decrease/increase by HKD 1,691,000
(2011: profit increase/decrease by HKD426,000)
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank deposits. In
addition, if interest rates on bank borrowings
had been 50 basis points (2011: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's loss for the year ended
31 December 2012 would increase/decrease by
HKD1,826,000 (2011: profit decrease/increase
by HKD501,000) attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate
bank loans.

(i)

REMBRERME

27. TR T A(H)

FIE R (4F)
AEENRSRMNERBREE
SR EFEBRITREFR B
B ELXBASBEUETTAHE
B ER1TIF KA T R ETTRHE
MERITER -

HEE ST

BT SRR 517 £ B RN
EHR - STETAERIETET
BRI E AR AL - RARE
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ME BT AREFHAL RS
B AEENBAEEERA
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SLIE

MR T & EF T 50 &
27(2011 : 50&2) - REM
FRER B AESHFIE - BIR
SE#EH=20129F12A318 1k
FENEF 8 m m >

1,691,000 75 (2011 : &0~
W 426,000 C) o W HEE

MAEERBRITERAEL
MEREBRFTE - BLHN - W ETE
RIBITERFE LT T #50

E2EH(2011 : S0EE) - MATE
HEhEEmiETg 522012
F12A31MBILFE - AEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RaMBEERME

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(iii)

Price Risk

The Group is mainly exposed to other price risk
through its investments in listed debt securities
outside Hong Kong. In addition, the Group
has monitored the price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective listed debt
instruments had been 5% higher/lower:

° investments revaluation reserve would
increase/decrease by HKD117,000 (2011:
increase/decrease by HKD283,000) for the
Group as a result of the changes in fair
value of available-for-sale investments.

The Group’s sensitivity to available-for-sale
investments has not changed significantly from
the prior year.

1 28 Symphony Holdings Limited 2012 Annual Report

27. TR T A (&)

(iii) RiEwERE
AEBNRAREBEHFRE
FHAEEMERRR - A%
ErEHMERRBREEERR
EREBUIMNIE EMOERFT
B o BRI REBMEER
ERHMERRR  WHREE
AR R T I RS R E o

BREDIT
AT ERESITEBEENER
S HIR P AR BB R R

i o
N

M L TRAREETAE
EEFTE5% ¢

e  ERAHIHEREMNATF
BEZE AEEEE
B FEEASLMN R
117,000 % 7T (2011 « 3
o0,/ 4>283,00058 7T ) °

HBHLESF  AREHAIHEE
BRERFFEEERENGRE
CEEANE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(iv) Credit Risk

The Group'’s credit risk is primary attributable
to its trade and other receivables. In order to
minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group had a concentration of credit risk
in relation to trade receivables as 45% (2011:
34%) and 81% (2011: 86%) of the Group's
total trade receivables were due from its
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the footwear manufacturing
segment. The credit risk in relation to these
receivables is limited because they are footwear
traders with well established brand names and
market positioning and extensive geographical
spread.

The Group also had a concentration of credit risk
in relation to the advance to a jointly controlled
entity and loan to another jointly controlled
entity. The credit risk in relation to these advance
and loan is limited because the jointly controlled
entities are in a net asset positions with well
established brand names.

REMBRERME

27. TR T A(H)

(iv) =EmEE
REEERRBRERE K&
BHEEBCEER—BKARR
BEEEEERSE FEHER
HAh B R 7 - AREMRERERR
ETHAKEBEER - Rt
AN AEBETERESEES
R SEEZERNA YK
Bl &80 - ARERD 38 AR D
MERIEL T ARBERERE -
REME EFR/AEED
EERBRERERD

REBEBNAZEZEKERE
FREERR  AAEBEHZA
EPRSAEFPHERE ZEMR
ARMEAEBERE ZEHE
BERI45% (2011 : 34% ) K 81%
(2011 : 86%) - HRNEEH A
A @R R TS E IR ERR
MBEETE - ZFEBERN
EERBRBR -

AEETARBRT —HHRF
EHEERERT S —HAHRF
THIBEEAZEFEERR
BEHEZSREFMEREERR
AR REFFHRRE
B WE BT RIFMmERE -

seemarad 012 458s 129



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RaMBEERME

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(v)

Liquidity Risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the operations of the
Group and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows.

The following table details the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities according to the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time
band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities
are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREaMBBERME
27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 27. €T HE ()
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) LRIEPEEERBERBER(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(v) Liquidity Risk (Continued) (v) FEELERE(E)
Liquidity And Interest Risk Tables MENE © KA EE &K
On demand Total
Weighted or undiscounted Carrying
average lessthan cash amount
interest rate 1month 13 312 flows at
Fi MG months months AEE 31122012
WETSE  HMMER 1-3ER 2R RERAE  R31.122012
% HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Group 158 TEn TEn Tn TR TR
2012 2012
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 $REE
Trade and other payables BARHMENGE 286,082 79128 46,977 412,187 412,187
Amounts due to jointly B RAHERNE
controlled entities 24,259 24,259 24,259
Bank borrowings - variable RTER-FBHE
interest-rate J 437,426 431,426 437,426
Financial quarantee contract FRERER 80,000 80,000 -
827,761 953,872 873,872
On demand Total
Weighted or undiscounted Carrying
average less than cash amount
interest rate 1 month 13 flows at
Mz REAAS months REE 3112201
mEHIE  HRER 13EA REREE 73112201
% HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Group 158 FHT TR TAT TAT
2011 2011
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ J{7+ &MAE
Trade and other payables BAREMEMNTE - 281,053 99,336 380,389 380,389
Amounts due to jointly controlled FEf ARSI B3R
entities - 25,286 - 25,286 25,286
Bank borrowings - variable BITER—2EFI%
interest-rate 1.52 120,000 - 120,000 120,000
Financial guarantee contract HRERAR - 80,000 = 80,000 =

506,339 99,336 605,675 525,675

suemEaman 202 £2xEs 137



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RaMBEERME

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(v)

Liquidity Risk (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or
less than 1 month” time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2012, the
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of
bank loans that are not repayable within one
year amounted to HKD120,000,000 (2011:
HKD&80,000,000). Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such bank loans will be repaid three to
five years after end of the reporting period
in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. At that
time, the aggregate principal and interest cash
outflows will amount to HKD 124,687,000 (2011:
HKD83,872,400).

The amount included above for financial
guarantee contract is the maximum amount
the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to
the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end
of the reporting period, the Group considers that
it is more likely than not that no amount will
be payable under the arrangement. However,
this estimate is subject to change depending
on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the
likelihood that the financial receivables held by
the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active
liguid markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid prices; and

o the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Fair Value Measurements Recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, all grouped into Level 1 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.
Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEEMBRRME

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair Value Measurements Recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
(Continued)

27. TR T A (%)

BRAREE BN I EH A FEE
B(#)

Group
HEM
2011
HKD'000
FiET
Level 1 B
Available-for-sale financial assets — listed A[{t$4E S RMEE— 5,665

28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(A)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group issued financial
guarantee to a bank in respect of banking facilities
granted to a jointly controlled entity. The aggregate
amount that could be required to be paid if the
guarantee was called upon in entirety amounted to
HKD80,000,000 (2011: HKD80,000,000), of which,
HKD80,000,000 (2011: HKD60,000,000) had been
utilised by the jointly controlled entity as at the end
of the reporting periods. As at 31 December 2012,
the estimated fair value of the guarantee amounted
to HKD2,300,000 was recorded as a liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position
and an expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the year.

Potential tax liabilities in connection with the
disagreement with the IRD, if any, is detailed in Note 7.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. OPERATING LEASES

THE GROUP AS LESSEE
The Group made the following minimum lease payments
during the year as follows:

REMBRRME

29. K&EHE

REEHEBEA
AEBNFEREL AT REBRENR

2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
TR FHET

Operating lease rentals in respect of: LATIEEMEEHERS

Minimum lease payments: EAERE

— plant — = 27,810 24,632
— retail shops —ZEE 5,484 6,979
Contingent rentals HAMEE 15,833 19,145

49,127 50,756

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments for plants
and retail shops under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

RARSESHR  AEBAEINREER
AATBUEM S HENRE LT ERHN
RRFEHERRE - RFHBEOONAT

2012 2011
HKD"000 HKD'000
FHT T

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive

FE-_FEERF
(BPEEEMRE)

16,019 32,832

4,154 21,772

20,173 54,604

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
Group for certain of its plants and retail shops. Leases are
negotiated for lease terms of one to five years.

The above lease commitments represent basic rents only
and do not include contingent rents payable in respect
of certain retail shops leased by the Group. In general,
these contingent rents are calculated with reference to
the relevant retail shops’ turnover using pre-determined
formulae. It is not possible to estimate in advance the
amount of such contingent rent payable.

@R ERORT A R BN HE THE
REEEHOES  BOEHEEA—E
FETE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME

29. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

THE GROUP AS LESSOR

Property rental income earned during the year was
HKD8,665,000 (2011: HKD7,203,000). Investment
properties held for rental purposes have committed tenants

for the next two years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum

lease payments:

29. KEHE(HE)

AEBBHBEA

T PTEYE WAL A8,665,000/8
(2011 : 7,203,000/870) - KEERTA
KWEMETIFIERERR - NARKME -

REFHERZNRENMECDBIIOMER -

ERESEAHMT -

RAREIR - NEBRBEP R R E &

2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
THERT FET
Within one year —FR 6,788 6,336
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FRERF
(BIEEEWE) 5,056 10,833
11,844 17,169
30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30. EXREIE
Group
rEE
2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
FTHET FAET
Contracted for but not provided BT HELRREHRESHN
— Capital expenditure in respect of the WREDZE - RS B % ks 8L
acquisition of property, plant and BEREYE T ERRL
equipment and construction of
property, plant and equipment/
investment properties 104,106
Authorised but not contracted for FECRERYRITIEHN
— Capital expenditure in respect of the B Y 5 EE LR EE— 1R
construction of property, plant and Tz EARRFE
equipment/investment properties and
acquisition of a piece of land 76,237 257,765
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, under the control of trustees. The
Group contributes 5% or HKD1,250 in maximum of relevant
payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees.

The subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the government of the PRC. The retirement scheme
contributions, which are based on a certain percentage
of the salaries of the relevant subsidiaries’ employees, are
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the period to which they relate and represent the
amount of contributions payable by these subsidiaries to the
scheme.

The Group also participates in defined contribution
retirement schemes organised by the relevant local
government authorities in other jurisdictions where the
Group operates. Certain employees of the Group eligible
for participating in the retirement schemes are entitled to
retirement benefits from the schemes. The Group is required
to make contributions to the retirement schemes up to time
of retirement of the eligible employees, excluding those
employees who resigned before their retirements, at a
percentage that is specified by the local governments.

31.

REMBRERME

RIREREE

REBAMBREENEGEREERT—
Bt AESFEI([RESFTE]) - &
BerdlNEERAEENEEIAE
B WHETSAESNESRHE - A5H
AN TERAMNS%H &m1,250%8
TAERBES IR - MES INERM
HERHR

ARRBRAEONERF BT EBAEE
HBIR ERRRRBAEH B E o thRIRGH
SHARTIZERANBE AR EENTENS
TEOLE - YRABHAS L FHE
REH ARG B KRG AR A 2EK

B

AEET2EAEEZEEEBNEMBDE
FE 15 A A B8 BT B P9 /O SRE R PR KRG
g - AEETABERS RN EEER
BRZAEZETENRKEN - NEBEEA
WEMBTREN A DX RAZFEARE
EEHMHR -  EERBEREBRERK/L
TRENEKABENERES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAMBERRME
32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 32. BEATHKE
(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (A) BEALXRS
During the year, the Group entered into the following FR - REFEEHE KRS HITEET
transactions with its jointly controlled entities: UTRS :
2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD'000
Nature HE THRT FHET
Sales HE 422
Interest income FEWA 6,469
Royalty fee payable HRES -
Rental income ik N 1,242
Purchase EE -
(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT (B) XEEE ASHM
PERSONNEL
The remuneration of the Directors and other members ERBEREMTIBEEE AN
of key management during the year was as follows: BT
2012 2011
HKD’000 HKD’'000
THERT FHET
Short-term benefits %2 HAtE A 20,079 20,805
Post-employment benefits I ER R 601 723
20,680 21,528
The remuneration of the Directors and key executives EERFEERAENFTHNIRES
is determined by the Board having regard to the RIEMNKB LT HBEMET -

performance of the individuals and market trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRERME

33. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALES 33. 7ERTHLEEE
As disclosed in Note 36, on 27 March 2013, the Group HANHTsE36 AT 0 201393 H27H -
entered into a disposal agreement with a joint venture AREE B Grand WealthB)& & 5% 5] 7B
partner of Grand Wealth pursuant to which the Group has EpE o BELREWSR  NEBEEBIKE
conditionally agreed to dispose of its 50% equity interest in, I [A & & A& B8 A 7 Grand Wealth #9
together with the preferred shares held, shareholder’s loan 50% %10 - IHEZELER REREREE
and other advances due to Grand Wealth, to the joint venture hIE S KT8 - BR(E 515,530,000 7T (48
partner for an aggregate consideration of USD15,530,000 £ 49120,382,00087T) © Kt - AEHE
(approximately HKD120,382,000). As a result of this {2 35 %15 20,512,000 7T B R (B B 18 -
agreement, an impairment loss of HKD20,512,000 on WHEBEEEERERFEZAREZRPR
the Group’s equity interest in Grand Wealth has been S BE—ITEMY - AAREE D ABENRE
recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of HRATHE Ll EE - HEEER WS
comprehensive income during the year. Since the Group ER[EHEEEE -
was committed to sell these assets before end of reporting
period, the disposal assets were classified as assets held for
sales accordingly.
34. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 34. A AEf#E
Share Contributed Retained
premium surplus profits Total
B3R E BERER BEaR i
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FAET FAT FAT
At 1 January 2011 R20114F1 /818 364,638 63,561 88,941 517,140
Profit for the year FEERA - - 120,315 120,315
Share consolidation, capital Rin&fF » BRASH BN
reduction and sub-division ik = 523,213 - 523,213
Open offer (Note 24(i) NHEERD
(Hi&E24(1)) (1,903) - - (1,903)
Dividend paid BERRE = = (39,241) (39,241)
At 31 December 2011 720114124318 362,735 586,774 170,015 1,119,524
Profit for the year FE A - - 58,515 58,515
Dividend paid EATARE = = (13,080) (13,080)
At 31 December 2012 72012612 A318 362,735 586,774 215,450 1,164,959
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RaMBEERME

34. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

The following describes the nature and purpose of each

reserve within owners’ equity:

Reserve

Description and purpose

Contributed surplus

Share premium

Properties
revaluation
reserve

Investments
revaluation
reserve

Translation
reserve

Retained
profits

Contributed surplus of
HKD63,561,000 represents the
excess of the fair value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired
and the nominal amount of the
Company's shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the group
reorganisation on 9 February 1995.
Details of the remaining balance of
HKD523,213,000 are set out in
Note 24(iii).

Amount subscribed for share capital
in excess of nominal value.

Gains/losses arising on the
revaluation of properties (other
than investment properties). The
balance of this reserve is wholly
undistributable.

Gains/losses arising on the
revaluation of available-for-sale
investments. The balance of this
reserve is wholly undistributable.

Gains/losses arising on retranslating
the net assets of foreign operations
into presentation currency.

Cumulative net gains and losses
recognised in profit or loss.

1 40 Symphony Holdings Limited 2012 Annual Report

34. R Tt ()

TXFHARSHEE AREASHENIEE

KB :

ik

FHPRBK

Rt (B

MEEHFRE

BREEHHE

B St

RE & T

EHE#463,561,000/8 7T
TyHe BB B A AR AR
M AFEBE 199542
AoB&EEEMA R
B EITR A A RIRG BR
EERZEE - FthEeh
523,213,000 THIFEIE
SR FE244i) ©

ERBRATEBLAEE
KRR o

MEREMEBRIN ER
EERE B -
eSSy KNPy
K ©

AHHEEREEHELN
Wit B8 - AR
BEE R TR DK °

BEBINRBEEFER
2 EREENKEE

8o

KB NHERH ReT i
KRR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

(i) Classification Between Investment
Properties and Owner-Occupied Properties
The Group has developed criteria which require
judgements to determine whether a property
qualifies as an investment property. Investment
property is a property held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that
are attributable not only to property but also
to other assets used and service provided. If an
entity provides ancillary services to the occupants
of a property it holds, an entity treats such a
property as investments property only if the
services are insignificant to the arrangement as a
whole.

REMBRERME

35. TEGETHE R AT AAMER
:OESE-PIY

EEBAKEZ S REE  EFBHE
AR EBMcEERABZKEE
FEITHIE R REER o AET RAEREEREK
THIRIREE L 8Bl E A R /R AE R 2 A RIR
T o BEREREZFMEAR -

fat KRR AR EEEER - W
AEsthEHERERX B - AINMERTE
BT 2 IR ARERER]  HIERIRER
HIRRK R - RIRE B R] R R SR AR
YRHERBRIER -

() REWEEEAWFEENDE

AEEEHEEENERE S
BRIERIEMRMT HIE &
8] - REMERBRIVES K
BAREIMERSMITELZ
M- Bt AEERR 0 %
MELTELERSRE - R
BETEAKERAE ZHME
EFXE XITARMEMREHR
ZReRETERBEMWER
T RABSTRRAMERZHM
BENMMEH RS - HEE
RWEEEANHEEEHBR
ERZERFHBEAZHIMS
WAREKR - AIERBAIRZME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RaMBERME

35. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(i)

Classification Between Investment
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group has transferred an investment property
with a carrying amount of HKD573,184,000 as
disclosed in note 13 to prepaid lease payments
and property, plant and equipment (the
“Property”). The Property represents an outlet
mall which has completed its construction and
commenced operation during the year. Based
on the mode of operation of the outlet mall,
in particular, that income earned is largely
dependent on the performance of the retail
business of the occupants and the Group has
the power to make significant operating and
financing decisions regarding the operation of
the Property, management is of the opinion that
the Property is in the nature of owner-occupied
properties under existing use for accounting
purposes.

The following are the key assumptions concerning

the future, and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment

to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(i)

(ii)

Estimated Impairment of Interests in Jointly
Controlled Entities

The determination of whether interests in
jointly controlled entities are impaired requires
an estimation of the share of present value of
the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the investees and the proceeds
on ultimate disposal of the investments, and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. Adequate impairment
loss had been recognised to the extent that
the recoverable amounts exceed the carrying
amount of the interests in jointly controlled
entities.

Estimated Impairment of Advances to
Jointly Controlled Entities

The Group makes provision for impairment of
advances to jointly controlled entities based
on an assessment of the recoverability of
the advances to jointly controlled entities.
Provisions are applied to the advances to jointly
controlled entities where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of
impairment requires the use of judgment and
estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of the advances
to jointly controlled entities and provision for
impaired advance to jointly controlled entities
in the period in which such estimate has
been changed. Based on management’s best
estimates, there is no material impairment of
advances to jointly controlled entities as at 31
December 2012 and 2011.

35. FES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RaMBERME

35. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Fair Value of Investment Properties

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group’s investment properties are stated at
fair value based on the valuation carried out by
independent professional valuers. In determining
the fair value, the valuers have adopted the
market value basis which takes into account
certain estimates, such as comparable market
transactions. The management has reviewed the
valuation and is satisfied that the valuation of
the Group’s investment properties is reasonable.

Income and Other Taxes

The Group is subject to income and other
taxes in a number of jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. Transactions and
calculations may exist for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
the tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(A)

In January 2013, the Group further injected an amount
of USD10,600,000 (approximately HKD82,167,000)
into Shenyang Keenson Alliance Properties Limited
("Shenyang Keenson”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary
indirectly held by the Group and in return, the Group'’s
equity interest in Shenyang Keenson increased from
83% to 88%. Upon receipt of fund, Shenyang
Keenson settled the remaining consideration of
RMB57,052,000 (approximately HKD70,925,000) for
the investment property representing a parcel of land
located at North Puheda Road Shenyang, Liaoning
Province, PRC, which Shenyang Keenson successfully
acquired in an open auction on 8 December 2011, and
in respect of which an amount of RMB120,892,000
was paid and recognised as deposit paid as at 31
December 2012.

On 11 January 2013, the Group further injected
UsD4,778,000 (approximately HKD37,037,000) into
Shenyang Park Outlets Property Development Co. Ltd
(translation name), a non wholly-owned subsidiary
indirectly held by the Group. After the capital injection,
the equity interests held by the Group remained
unchanged.

On 22 January 2013, the Group entered into a
provisional sale and purchase agreement for the
disposal of an investment property with a carrying
amount of HKD9,500,000 as at 31 December 2012
for a consideration of HKD9,700,000.

REaMBRERME

36. IEHIREER

(A)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEEMBRRME

36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(CONTINUED)

(D) On 27 March 2013, the Group entered into
the following acquisition, disposal and transfer
agreements:

() a disposal agreement with the joint venture
partner of Grand Wealth pursuant to which
the Group has conditionally agreed to dispose
of its 50% equity interest in, together with
the preferred shares held, shareholder’s loan
and other advances due to Grand Wealth,
to the joint venture partner for an aggregate
consideration of USD15,530,000 (approximately
HKD120,382,000). Upon closing of this disposal,
the Group will cease to have any interest in
Grand Wealth;

(i) an acquisition agreement with the joint
venture partner China Ocean (who is also the
joint venture of Grand Wealth) to which the
Group has conditionally agreed to acquire
from the joint venture partner its 50% equity
interest in China Ocean together with the
shareholder’s loan owed by China Ocean to
the joint venture partner for an aggregate
consideration of USD15,500,000 (approximately
HKD120,500,000). Upon closing of this
acquisition, China Ocean will become a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company; and

(i) a trademark agreement pursuant to which the
Group will, through a subsidiary of China Ocean,
sells and transfers to an investee company of
the joint venture partner of Welcome Wealth, all
the right, title and interest in and to the PONY
trademarks that are registered in the PRC and
Taiwan (the “Transferred Trademarks”). Under
the trademark agreement, the Group will retain
the right to use the Transferred Trademarks
solely for the purposes of manufacturing
products to be sold exclusively outside of the
PRC and Taiwan.

Details of the above transactions are disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 27 March 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAMEEEME
37. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 37. RMTEB AR ER
Company
¥ NG|

2012 2011

HKD’000 HKD’'000

FH&xT FET

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETHRRD - IRARAR 988 988

Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURTT B A BIZRIE 2,001,224 1,501,707
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHT B A B (476,580) (380,650)
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- EUKBARREAEERE RELEH

free and in substance, represent part of the Company’s ERARRTRMBATNLARE -

investments in the subsidiaries.

Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free BB RRFIEAEER 28 RAR
and repayable on demand. ESRIEE -
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 M2012F %2011 128318 » ARAIME
December 2012 and 2011 are as follows: ZEMBARFBET ¢
Place of Paid up Effective interest in issued/
incorporation/registration issued/registered registered capital held
Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
WEAR FMAL/ EERSEHY CHR BTRERRA KAARERRT/BERAGNES  TEED

2012 201
s el s Directly  Indirectly
ER 553 B it

Canray Int'l Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 100% - 100% Footwear trading
AERNAS LERIET HEES

Cashmaster Profits Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 - 100% Footwear trading
AERNAS LERIET HEES

Chi Yuen Developments Limited British Virgin Islands/PRC Ordinary USD1
ERERARAR ERRAES/ T LRRIET

- 100% Footwear
manufacturing

RN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FaMBREME
37. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 37. AMEARINER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Place of Paid up Effective interest in issued/
incorporation/registration issued/registered registered capital held
Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
HWEAR AMRYL/ BEREEHYE CHR RARERRA RATREC BT/ BRI ERER TEEH
2012 2011
DIl ellEgd s Directly  Indirectly
EE & BR fis
Cosmo Group Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD10,000 100% 100% - Investment holding
EERIES LRRIET REZK
Continuance Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 - 100% Investment holding
EERIES LRRIET REZR
Guangzhou Panyu Xingtaiy PRC Registered capital 92.78% - 92.78% Footwear
Footwear Industry & (Co-operative joint venture) ~ RMB68,260,876 manufacturing
Commerce Co. Ltd. HE (FERE) HRERARE SRR
ENEREREEERAT 68,260,876
Fuging Grand Galatica PRC Registered capital - 100% Footwear
BEEA (Wholly owned USD700,000 manufacturing
foreign enterprise) & AK700,000% T SRR
HE (EEELE)
Holey Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD2 - 100% Footwear trading
wB2EHERAA B ERERET #RE5
Liang Shing Industries Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HKD72,000 - 100%  Provision of
REEBZERNA B Non-voting management
deferred (Note 1) services
HKD1,428,000 REERRE
ERART2,0008 T REK
SRMELR (1)
1,428,000
Liang Shing Industries (HK) Hong Kong Ordinary - 100% Footwear marketing
Limited BB HKD10,000 and trading
REEZ (B%) ERAR L3RR 10,00087T EREERES
Lucky Port Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 100% Footwear marketing
BE usp2 and trading
LEET EREEERES
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37. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRERME

37. RHB AT ER ()

(CONTINUED)
Place of Paid up Effective interest in issued/
incorporation/registration issued/registered registered capital held

Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities

MEAR EMAL FEREERS EHR - BOREERA RARBECRT/EZRRAENES  EEEH

2012 201
DIl ellEgd s Directly  Indirectly
=8 553 Ef i
Misto Worldwide Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 100% - 100% Investment holding
ERRLES LRI RERR
Panta Group Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 - 100% Investment holding
EBRRER LRRET REAR
Power Plus Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 - 100% Investment holding
RBRAEE LERIET REER
Premier Ever Group Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary - 625% Investment holding
EBRLHE USD25,581,600 REZR
Ei@%25,581,600% T
Rivergold Investment Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Ordinary - 60% Investment holding
EERTES USD31,926,000 REER
Ei@%31,926,000% T
BRI EERS PRC Registered capital - 60% Property investment
ERAA (Non-wholly owned USD70,766,000 MELE
foreign enterprise) &R
TE (MERELE) %7T70,766,000

BHENMABEERLE  PRC Registered capital - 62% Property investment
(Non-wholly owned USD42,500,000 NELRE
foreign enterprise) #8745 42,500,000

hE (PRERE)

RGREEZERAT PRC Registered capital - 100% Property investment
(Wholly owned USD18,300,000 NELE
foreign enterprise) S B RSE57,18,300,000

E OMVEEALE)

BEREaEERAR PRC Registered capital - - Operation and
(Wholly owned USD9,800,000 management of
foreign enterprise) HHERET outlet mall

E OMVERALE) 9,800,000 RERGEERER

seemarad 012 x8s 149



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRME

37. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

37. RHEB AR ()

(CONTINUED)
Place of Paid up Effective interest in issued/
incorporation/registration issued/registered registered capital held
Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
WEAR EMAL/ FEREELS CHR BOREERA KAARERRT/BERAGNES  TEED
2012 201
s el s Directly  Indirectly
E# ik B i
Stateway Enterprises Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 100% - 100% Footwear trading
AELEERAR EBRRER LERIET LY
Symphony Resources Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKD2 - 100% Trading of footwear
MEERBRAR B LERET apparels,
swimming wear
and accessories
BE R
Tk RER
RHES
Takson Asia Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD10,000 - 100% Footwear purchasing
RHARARA B LRAR10,0005T ERRE
Zenith Billion Trading Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKD2 - 100% Footwear trading
BREEFERAR BB LRR2ET §E%5
HILEEEZER AT PRC Registered capital - 100% Footwear
("Zhongshan Jingmei") (Wholly owned UsD21,500,000 manufacturing
foreign enterprise) & ARZ7821,500,000 ERRE
hE (VEEARE)
=1 NS PRC Registered capital - 100% Footwear
("Zhongshan Huali") (Wholly owned USD2,500,000 manufacturing
foreign enterprise) & A% 12,500,000 BRERE
e VEEARE)
Stateway Vietnam Vietnam Registered capital - 100% Footwear
B () (Wholly owned VND119,989,391,000 manufacturing
foreign enterprise) HMAR HERE
#E OIEEEL%) 119,989,391,000
HEE
Continuance Vietnam Vietnam Registered capital - 100% Footwear
B2 (8F) (Wholly owned VND215,937,840,000 manufacturing
foreign enterprise) HMAR HEYE
#E OIEEEL%) 215,937,840,000
HEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

REaMBRERME

37. RMB QR ()

(CONTINUED)
Place of Paid up Effective interest in issued/
incorporation/registration issued/registered registered capital held
Subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
WEAR HMAL/ ERREERE CHRE - BORERRA KAARERRT/BERAGNES  TEED
2011
Directly  Indirectly
Bk i
Panta Group Vietnam Limited ~ Vietnam Registered capital - 100% Footwear
(Wholly owned USD3,000,000 manufacturing
foreign enterprise) HRER HREYE
BE GEEELR) 713,000,000
HERERGERAR PRC Registered capital - 100% Trading, retaling
(Wholly owned RMB35,728,529 and distribution
foreign enterprise) AMERARE of apparels,
HE GEBERE) 35,728,529 swimming wear
and accessories
fR% - kRS R A
25 TER
pog
Note: it
1. The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are not entitled to vote, 1. FER IR AE LRI BN FIRERES - I

not entitled to any dividend and, on winding-up, only entitled out of
the surplus assets of the Company, to a return of capital after a total
sum of HKD100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders
of the ordinary shares of the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt security at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

38. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the commencement of the operation of the
outlet mall located in the PRC during the year, the outlet
mall is identified as a separate segment for resources
allocation and performance assessment by the chief
operating decision maker. Accordingly, certain comparative
figures of segment information have been reclassified to
conform to current year's presentation,

TEFHERERE - LFOFEEF - RAHEE
A% 100,000,000,000,000,% 7T T+ 75 23 7] 4 & 4
RIFEAE » T AJES B R ARG TR EE

RATRE PRI A FRAMEEA - 8
ME AR BITEBRND

EERR UERINARFMBRRR
BYEAKERENREENRA - ER

RAMEHREMHBARNFAERNSSE

HMBARER B BRITE

38. LEEBMERTF

MR AFERPENRERETAR CRASH
BE RERIREIBEERRERR/E
BOEERBEEZNZ— 280 - Bt - &
D MERALBRENHEFREASFH
Z2HIMEFHDLE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEEE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A3181LEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THExT FHT FHET T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE7) (B=E7))
RESULTS E4
Revenue ) 1,967,574 2,478,280 1,947,473 1,784,907 2,050,584
(Loss)/ profit before BERI(EHE), 57
income tax expense (202,976) 57,508 126,366 28,528 (232,762)
Taxation FH18 (21,370) (21,652) (22,176) (10,785) 1,554
(Loss)/ profit for the year  FE(EH8), S&F) -0 35,856 104,190 17,743 (231,208)
(Loss)/ profit attributable to: &5 (E#8),&F :
Owners of the Company  ARQ&#HEA A (214,346) 23,811 104,455 17,963 (228,025)
Non-controlling interests  JEIZ iz (10,000) 12,045 (265) (220) (3,183)
(224,346) 35,856 104,190 17,743 (231,208)
As at 31 December
MW12A318
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD'000
THxT FET FHET FHT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE7) (BE7))
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Total assets BEEE 2,974,287 2,672,184 2,186,623 1,802,940 1,830,578
Total liabilities afERE (1,162,903) (772,754) (660,047) (420,705) (494,302)
1,811,384 1,899,430 1,526,576 1,382,235 1,336,276
Equity attributable to ¥iN/NETEZF =N
owners of the Company  fE{EiEzs 1,491,488 1,695,066 1,424,824 1,349,615 1,303,445
Non-controlling interests  FE#ZE A& =S 319,896 204,364 101,752 32,620 32,831
1,811,384 1,899,430 1,526,576 1,382,235 1,336,276
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' PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
EBYREH

(A) PROPERTIES HELD AS PROPERTY, PLANT (A) AV  BERRENYE
AND EQUIPMENT

Effective
Gross floor % held
Location Lease term area Use E=2 )
3 2 HEH REEEE A2 BRLL=E
(sq.ft.)
FAR
Unit Nos. 6 to 10, portions of  &#& Medium 14,090 Commercial 100
Unit Nos. 1 and 5 on the LAKREES105% P H [EES
10/F of Island Place Tower, BB ARE 108
No. 510 King's Road, 1558 5h D B AL
North Point, K6ZE 1057 8L
Hong Kong
Unit 16-3, Lane 73, REREAE Long 43,446 Industrial 100
Rau Ping Road, EME R land
Tsyh Torng, R 228 T%
Yun Lin Hsien, BEFRL73516.23
Taiwan, R.O.C.
No0.98 Pu He Road FREE A RFEME Long 2,152,782 Commercial 60
Shenbei New District, BEEEEGT 3=t EES
Liaoning Province, B
the People's Republic of China 37 }8985%
Lot No. Shenbei 2008-050 FREE A REFE Medium 100,146 Commercial 60
North Puheda Road BEEEEE™ A (site area m%E
Hushi Tai Development Zone, RA&GZEER (sq.m))
Shenyang, Liaoning Province,  S&AAsE4t (MR mEAE
PRC J%12008-05057% (F77K))
Lots No. Shenbei (G) 2008-017 A= A REFNE Medium 45,166 Industrial 60
North Puheda Road, BEEEEE™ A (site area I %
Hushi Tai Development Zone, RAAGZEER (sq.m))
Shenyang, Liaoning Province,  S&/a As&db (MR mEAE
PRC J#16(G) 2008-0175% (F77K))
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
FEMREH

(B) PROPERTIES HELD AS INVESTMENT (B) 2B EWMEXNME

PROPERTIES
Effective
Gross floor % held
Location Lease term area Use E=2 )
ith 2h HEH REEEE AR BRtb=x
(sq.ft.)
FAR
Unit Nos. 1 to 10 on the B Medium 20,090 Commercial 100
3/F of Island Place Tower, bldg=:! HHR [EES
No. 510 King's Road, EEE51058
North Point, BIEANE3E
Hong Kong 1= 1055847
Portion B on 5/F, B Medium 4,462 Industrial 100
No. 32 Hung To Road, NEEBE A T¥
Kwun Tong, TEEIE325%
Kowloon SIEBEL D BEfL
Unit Nos. 2 to 4, EB Medium 6,000 Commercial 100
portions of Unit Nos. 1and 5 b AHE2:E510%%  FH [HES
on the 10/F of Island Place BEXRE10E
Tower, 2R45REA R
No. 510 King's Road, 1ZE58B10 BhL
North Point,
Hong Kong
Flat E on 8/F, B Medium 975 Residential 100
One Island Place, Bld=: AR ER F=
No. 51 Tanner Road, F2E515,
North Point, PRIE Y B
Hong Kong SIEE=E
Unit C, 2/F, &S Long 4,864 Industrial 100
Hop Ming Factory Building, Lo RH T
No. 8 On Yip Street, 28R
Chai Wan, EHImKE
Hong Kong 2ECENL
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(B) PROPERTIES HELD AS INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

FEMERH

(B) 7HAREWMRNYE (&)

Effective
Gross floor % held
Location Lease term area Use f=2=}
1t 2 HEH BEEEE AR BRRLL R
(sq.ft.)
FEAR
Unit 3, Flat 113 to 114, AREEARHAME Medium 11,214 Commercial 100
123 to 124, No. 21-1, HEE RHR [EES
Wenyi Road Shenhe District, RS T &
Shenyang SCEPE21-158
PRC —E1-1-3-
1-1-4K% —[E€1-2-3 -
1-2-4FME
Site No. 88, FREE A RIEFE Medium 44,237 Commercial/ 82
North Puheda Road, FEEEREH R ER (site area Residential
Daoyi Development Zone, =S (sq.m)) mEE=E
Shenbei New District, BEERERE (b IRmEFE
Shenyang, Liaoning Province,  S&m A&t (FEF2K))
PRC 885 i 1R
Site No. 89 AREEARHAME Medium 55,101 Commercial 100
North Puheda Road, HEBEE RS  Hp (site area P
Daoyi Development Zone, wiLEH S (sq.m))
Shenbei New District, BEERERE (bR TR
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, S AcEdl (ERHXK))
PRC 895k 5k

suemsRAR 2012 #ERs 155



INFORMATION TO STAKEHOLDERS

FIRHEMRESRMR

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Details of the Annual General Meeting are set out in the Notice of
Annual General Meeting to be sent to Shareholders together with
a proxy form.

Date: Tuesday, 11 June 2013
Time: 9:30 a.m.
Venue: 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King’s Road,

North Point, Hong Kong

ANNUAL REPORT

The Annual Report containing financial statements and
notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012 is published on both the websites of the
Company (www.symphonyholdings.com) and the Exchange
(www.hkex.com.hk).

REGISTERED OFFICE

Address: Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton

HM11 Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Address: 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong
Email: info@symphonyholdings.com

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

The Bank of Bermuda Limited
6 Front Street
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda

Name:
Address:

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Name: Tricor Tengis Limited

Address: 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 29801333

Facsimile: (852) 28108185
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